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Financial Highlights
MERE

Revenue Profit Attributable to Shareholders
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Despite the global downturn surrounding the first half of 2009, the
demand for metal remained strong as benefited from the PRC

government policy aiming at boosting investment and stimulating
domestic consumption, the Group manages to achieve a growth in both
turnover and net profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 of 38.9%
and 62.5% respectively. China is the world's largest metal consumption
country, consuming one third of the world’s metal resources. China's fast
growing economic growth relies heavily on natural resources that will be
used up some day. Yet, renewable resources would never run out and
could be recycled infinitely. This has been the state's long-term strategic
policy to use renewable resources in order to meet energy efficiency and

reduce carbon emission.
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However, the metal recycling industry is in the infancy stage. The sector is
highly fragmented, poorly equipped and managed, and unable to meet
the needs of the developing metal industry. For the industry to grow, it
has to move towards large-scale consolidation and develop systematic
operation with modern management systems as well as large scale
centralised processing and distribution modes. As the country continues
to industrialise and urbanise, its demand recycled metals will keep
climbing. In the coming years, China’s scrap metals reserves will be
released into the market, providing a lot of room for development in the

industry.

On 22 June 2009, we successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which provides us with a good platform
to access to capital markets - already secured RMB3.5 billion of standby
credit facilities beginning of 2010 and the necessary capital to continue
our regional expansion and to repay the high cost financing - debt/ equity
ratio has dropped from 93% as of 31 December 2008 to 15% as of 3|
December 2009 and our cash in hand of approximately HK$554.4 million
as at 31 December 2009.

For Eastern China, we have acquired a port in Jiangyin city at a
competitive price and formed a joint venture company with a leading
metal recycler in the region of the end of 2009; both steps have not only
proven our market position but also enhanced our presence in the
region. Our Ningbo city facility has started operation since December
2009. For Northern China, the potential acquisition of a leading metal
recycler in Tianjin would further expand our business in the Northern
China region and present us with a suitable and immediate platform in

both suppliers and customers.

As a first-mover in the industry with the Group's sizeable scale of
operation, we are well positioned to be the consolidator given by our
operation with scale, strategic national network in the region with strong
scrap metal demand, well established water and road transportation
networks, extensive and quality customer base and procurement network

and platform with access to capital markets.
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Our future development strategy is to continue to strengthen our
strategic national network, develop diversified sales and procurement
networks to enlarge our market share, continue to invest in advanced
machinery and environmental protection facilities to ensure operational
efficiency and economies of scale, increase investment on our staff to
enhance management quality and strengthen our overall operational and

business integration capability.

Our aim is to realise fast and sustainable development and become the
consolidator in the industry. We will strive to maintain high standard of
corporate governance and high operational efficiency, which, we believe,

will guarantee steady growth of our business.

We believe that 2010, which is our first full year of operation in multiple
regions and effects from investments in the past 2 years will be reflected,
will be a critical year for the Group as growth in sales quantity will be
substantial. Our long term goal is to become one of the largest metal

recycling enterprises in the world within five years.

On behalf of the Board

Chun Chi Wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 April 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 December 2009 (the “Year”), the Group has
made steady growth in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis.
Compared with the year of 2008, revenue has increased by 38.9% to
HK$9,063.2 million from HK$6,526.6 million while profit attributable to
owners of the Company has increased by 62.5% to HK$478.4 million
from HK$294.4 million. The key drivers of the growth were China's
continuous strong demand for copper and recovery of the steel

consumption during the Year.

In order to counter the global economic downturn during the year, the
Chinese government committed to boosting investment and stimulating
domestic consumption by making significant investment in projects of
roads, railways and power grids. Demand for metals in China has been
strong and is expected to remain strong. China-copper apparent
consumption increased 29.2% to 6.68 million tons in 2009 from 5.17
million tons in 2008. On the other hand, China’s copper imports jumped
to a record in February 2010, inbound shipments advanced 42% from
January 2010 to 329,311 tons which is the highest level since 2003,
according to the data by Bloomberg. Copper price has rebounded by
over 140% to over US$7,300 per ton during the Year, and China’s

demand was a major driving force. Despite the ups and downs of the

Siock code: ??3
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China’s steel industry such as the destocking in the first quarter of the
Year, China's crude steel production in 2009 reached 568 million tons, an
increase of 13.5% from 2008. This is a record of annual crude steel
production figure for a single country. China'’s share of the worlds’ steel
production continued to grow in 2009 to approximately 47% of worlds'
total crude steel production, an increase of 9% point compared to 2008.
Scrap steel consumption in China increased |1.1% to 80 million tons in
2009 from 72 million tons in 2008. According to various reports, growth
of metals demand in China is expected to remain robust as the need for
more metals stemming from the 4 trillion economic stimulus package is
expected to last for a few years. The Group has benefited from such
strong demand of metals and achieved a higher gross profit margin for
the Year. The volume of non-ferrous metals sold for the Year reached
around 201,000 tons representing an impressive surge in sales volume of
approximately 82.73% compared with around 110,000 tons for last year.
The sales of ferrous scrap steel remained stable, with sales quantity for
the Year totaling around 562,000 tons, compared with around 605,000
tons for last year, or a decrease of 7.1%.

22 June 2009 marked a major milestone for the Company which saw the
successful listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A net
proceeds of approximately HK$1,684.9 million was raised, of which
approximately HK$781.2 million was deployed in repaying the Group’s
high cost debt, being the US$80 million secured guaranteed senior notes
issued by the Company in October 2007 (the “Senior Notes"), debt-to-
equity ratio dropped from 93% as of 3| December 2008 to 5% as of 3|
December 2009 and cash in hand of approximately HK$554.4 million.
The listing has also provided the Group with necessary capital to
continue our regional expansion and provided a good platform to access

capital markets.

Since the listing, the Group has progressed and achieved the strategic
initiatives that we committed to the shareholders in the past to speed up
our regional expansion. As a first mover in the industry, the Group has
adopted an inorganic approach to maintain the relative advantages,
ranging from forming joint ventures with or outright acquisitions of major
scrap metal recyclers in the region. This approach reinforces the presence
of the Company in the region promptly and presents the Company with

a suitable and immediate platform for both suppliers and customers to

Management Discussion and Analysis
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further develop the metal recycling business in the region. The total
production capacity of the Group will be increased from 3.10 million tons
in 2009 to 4.10 million tons, as a result of which, our leading position in

the Chinese market will be further enhanced.

For the Eastern China operation, the Group has formed a 70%-owned
joint venture with TR MEEWEBEFBER AR (Jiangyin
Xiachang Materials Recycling Company Limited) (“Xiachang") on 10
November 2009. With a designed annual capacity of 250,000 tons,
Xiachang is one of the leading metal recyclers in the region. Sharing the
aim to adopt modern way towards metal recycling, Xiachang was
awarded by the China Association of Metal Scrap Utilization as the role
model for scrap metal distribution base in 2005. Xiachang has a long
operating history in the region and established a base of quality
customers and an extensive suppliers network. On 3| December 2009,
the Group has entered into agreements to acquire a 99.68% interest in
THIREEEMEAERRA
Limited) ("Jiangyin Container”) for an aggregate consideration of RMB220

A (Jiangsu Jiangyin Port Container Company

million (equivalent to approximately HK$248.6 million). The port
operated and owned by Jiangyin Container is a national type | port, has a
shore line of 570 meters and water depth of -15 meters, with an

operational area of approximately 170,000 square meters and an annual

--H‘:F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

handling capacity of approximately 5 million tons. This will become an
exclusive port for processing, handling and logistics to serve as the
Group's hub centre in the Eastern China region. This substantially
improves the Company's operational efficiency and competitiveness in
the region and lowers the transportation costs. In addition, this will
connect, by water transportation, the Group's recycling centers in
Northern and Southern China, thus effectively expanding our sales and
distribution network coverage. In addition, our Ningbo city facility has
been in operation since December 2009. The Ningbo city base has an
area of 67,000 sq. metres. Its processing capacity of the shredder ranges
from 120 tons to 150 tons per hour, which increases the Group's
production capacity by 500,000 tons and contributes the fruitful results
to the Group. In addition, the Group has added Baosteel Group as one of
the key target customers in 2010.

For the Northern China operation, the Company entered into a letter of
intent with X )2 Bl g£3% & AR 22 8] (Tianjin Guoneng Investment Co,,
Ltd) ("TGIC") on 4 April 2010 to acquire from TGIC the entire equity
interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary X )& Bl g & JR 2 & 2 7] (Tianjin
Guoneng Resources Development Corporation) ("Guoneng
Development™). Guoneng Development is one of the largest scrap metal
companies in the Northern China with annual sales of scrap metals
exceeding 600,000 tons. Its total sales of scrap metals for the period
from 2007 to 2009 exceeded 1,200,000 tons (including the sales of its

predecessor). It has built up an established and long-term quality

customers and suppliers base in the region. Guoneng Development has
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been one of the major suppliers to K2 E &£ B x5 B R A 7] (Tianjin
Steel Pipe Co. Ltd) (“Tianjin Pipe”), the largest scrap metal consumer in
Tianjin. Guoneng Development was selected as the first batch of
recycling materials collection construction project (F 4 &R B 8 R
i IEE) by the Tianjin Commission of Commerce. The acquisition of
TGIC built solid foundation for the business development in the
Northern China region. In addition, the Group has already started the
business relationship with Tianjin Pipe in 2010.

For the Southern China operation, the production capacity of Lianzhong
Stainless Steel Corporation, one of the major customers of the Group,
doubled and amounted to 2 million tons at the end of 2009, resulting in
an increasing demand for the products of the Group. In addition, the
facilities in Zhongshan city commenced operation in February 2010 with

an area of 30,000 sg. metres.

For the Central China operation, it is expected that the facilities in
Wuhan city will commence operation in the third quarter in 2010. The
Wuhan city base with a total area of 118,000 sq. metres will increase the

Group's production capacity by 500,000 tons.

The listing status of the Company has also provided the Group with a
robust platform to access to capital markets. On 29 December 2009, the
Company has signed comprehensive cooperation agreements with /1
THEETRMDBRARIIRZIT (Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited, Jiangyin Sub-Branch) (“ICBC"), # Bl 2 #RT 11 B R
RANTE 4T (Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Jiangyin Sub-Branch)
(“ABC"), F Bl 2 R $R 1T Ak 1 %5 PR /2 A1 #& #5 73 1T (China Construction
Bank Limited, Wuxi Branch) (“CCB") and Ff Bl %X 5@ 1TRR 0 B[R 2 &)
I X 4T (Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Jiangyin Sub-Branch)
("BOC") pursuant to which ICBC, ABC, CCB and BOC have agreed to
grant integrated credit facilities of up to RMBI,000 million, RMB 1,000
million, RMB 1,000 million and RMB500 million to the Group respectively
("RMB3.5 Billion Integrated Credit Facilities”). The RMB3.5 Billion
Integrated Credit Facilities mainly include working capital loan, trade
finance facility and international business finance facility. The Company
considers that the RMB3.5 Billion Integrated Credit Facilities will provide
sufficient working capital and strong support to the Eastern China

operation as well as facilitating the overall development of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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In February 2009, the State Council of China has passed a new regulation
(number 551) (the “Regulation”) effective January 2011 that regulates the
collection and recycling of scrap home appliances products, for the
protection of the environment and promotion of the recycling industry.
The Regulation encourages home appliances manufacturers, retailers and
metal recyclers to form alliances on home appliances recycling system.
The Group has been in discussions with various parties on various forms

of cooperations in response to the State's policy.

Looking forward to 2010, the Group will adhere to its core competitive
advantages to respond to market changes. 2010 is the first full year of
operations of the Group's multiple regions and effects from investments
in the past 2 years will be reflected. The growth in 2010 will be
substantial and Eastern China and Northern China regions will be the
main growth drivers of the Group. The Group has already achieved a
total sales quantity of approximately 340,000 tons during the first quarter
of 2010, representing approximately 48% of the sales quantity in 2009.

Metal recycling is an industry with sustainable development and echoes
Chinese central government's objective to develop a renewable economy.
The metal recycling industry is in its initial stage of development. The
industry is fragmented with out-dated facilities and management, which
are unable to satisfy the needs for the development of metal industry.
Large-scale consolidation is essential so as to develop a business model
with major processing and distributing integrated bases with scalable
operation and modern management. As the industry leader and
leveraging on our scalable operation, strategic national market coverage,
optimised land and water transportation networks, high-quality
customers and suppliers networks and the good financing platform as a
listing company, the Group is well positioned to be the industry
consolidator, grasping the development opportunities in the industry to

satisfy the extensive market demand.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
HK$9,063.2 million (2008: HK$6,526.6 million), representing an increase

of 38.9% as compared to last year.

Increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in the sales of non-ferrous scrap metals, mainly copper, during
the year. We have entered into more long-term contracts with overseas
suppliers for non-ferrous scrap metals, thus securing their supply of this

high demand metal.

Other Income

Other income, including mainly interest income, rental income and
exchange gain, has decreased by 63.8% from HK$22.0 million for last year
to HK$8.0 million. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
exchange gain by HK$12.8 million because Renminbi did not further

appreciate against US dollars in the year

Distribution and Selling Expenses, Administrative Expenses

and Other Expenses

For the year ended 3| December 2009, distribution and selling expenses
amounted to HK$6.6 million, representing a decrease of |16% compared
with last year. The decrease was due to tighter control on expenditures

since the economic downturn from the second half of 2008.

Administrative expenses including staff salaries, depreciation expenses
and other general administration expenses amounted to HK$83.5 million,
representing an increase of 67.7% over that of HK$49.8 million for last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in directors and
administration staff, and expenses incurred by the Company for the
purpose of expanding its operations. The Group recognized total
expenses of HK$15.1 million for the year in relation to share options
granted by the Company under two share option schemes adopted by

the Company.

Other expenses amounted to HK$13.4 million, representing professional

fees and listing related expenses for the Company's listing in June 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Changes in Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments

It represents the gain or loss arising from the changes in fair value of the
metal commodity future contracts used to hedge against the Group’s
purchases and inventory. Metal commodity prices have been increasing
during the year and resulted in losses on those commodity future
contracts used to hedge against the corresponding spot purchase or

inventory.

[t is the policy of the Group not to enter into any derivative contracts

purely for speculative purpose.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by 18.3% from HK$147.4 million in 2008 to
HK$120.4 million in 2009, mainly due to the interest expenses of the
Senior Notes. Under the terms of the Senior Notes, in the event that the
Senior Notes were redeemed between interest dates (23 April and 23
October of each year), the Group would be required to pay the principal
amount of the Senior Notes together with accrued and unpaid interest
to the next interest payment date. The Senior Notes were redeemed on
23 June 2009 as triggered by the listing of the Company, and interest
accrued from 24 April 2009 to 23 October 2009 was paid upon
redemption. Total interest accrued for the year ended 31 December 2009
(approximately 10 months) amounted to HK$111.0 million was paid and
recorded as finance costs for the year, whereas interest of HK$125.0
million for 12 months was accrued for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company and Dividend

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2009 grew by 62.5% to HK$478.4 million as compared with
HK$294.4 million for the last year.

No interim dividend for the first half of the current year was declared to
the shareholders. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the directors
have proposed a final dividend of HKI2 cents per share, which will

aggregate to approximately HK$125.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Working Capital

The inventory turnover of the Group was 22 days for the year ended 3|

December 2009 as compared to |2 days for the last year

The Group's debtors’ turnover (including both trade debtors and bills
receivable) was 73 days for the year ended 31 December 2009 as
compared to 52 days for the last year. The Group generally allows
average credit periods of 30 to 60 days and 30 to 90 days to its ferrous
and non-ferrous customers, respectively. The increase was primarily due
to higher business volume and longer credit period allowed to non-

ferrous customers with long-term business relationship.

The Group's creditors’ turnover was 20 days for the year ended 3|
December 2009 as compared to 14 days for the last year. Credit periods
granted by the Group's suppliers ranged up to 60 days. The increase was
primarily induced by the increase in the turnover days of the trade
debtors and bills receivables. As a result, the Group sought longer credit

periods and support from the suppliers.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has net current assets of
HK$2,707.1 million (2008: HK$630.8 million) of which cash and bank
deposits were HK$827.1 million (2008: HK$419.4 million).

Total borrowings, including discounted bills, were HK$59 1.4 million (2008:
HKS$1,140.9 million). They were mainly used to finance the purchases of
the Group. The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi, of which HK$392.7 million were at

fixed rates and HK$451.6 million were repayable within one year.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2009 (total borrowings
divided by total assets) was 12.5% (2008: 54.3%).

The Group's transactions and the monetary assets are principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
The Group has not experienced any material difficulties or effects on its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange

rates during the Year.
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& Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group adopts centralized financing and treasury policies in order to
ensure the Group’s funding is utilized efficiently. Conservative approach is
adopted on monitoring foreign exchange exposure and interest rate risk.
Forward contracts were used to hedge the foreign currency exposure in

trading activities when it was considered appropriate.

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its commitments
and working capital requirements. This strong cash position enables the
Group to explore investment and business development opportunities

when expanding its market share in China.

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

In order to enhance production capacity, the Group invested
approximately HK$93.7 million during the Year (2008: HK$66.1 million) in
the acquisition of new fixed assets. These mainly represented the
construction in progress and machinery, deposits paid for land use rights
and acquisition of machineries for various plants in China. As at 31
December 2009, the Group made capital expenditure commitments of
approximately HK$306.5 million during the Year (2008: HK$65.7 million)
which were contracted but not provided for in the financial statements.
These commitments were mainly related to the acquisition of Jiangyin
Container which amounted to HK$250 million, the remaining amounts
were related to machinery for the expansion of the Group's production
capacity.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's banking facilities were mainly
collateralised by certain bills receivable amounted to HK$185.3 million
(2008: HK$304.6 million), bank deposits amounted to HK$210.4 million
(2008: HK$72.5 million), and certain land and buildings of the Group of
approximately HK$4.5 million (2008: HK$4.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a workforce of more than 400
people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive level and are
reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant labour market and
economic situation. The Group has share option schemes whereby
employees of the Group are granted options to acquire shares in the

Company.

Good relationship has been maintained between the Group and its
employees. The Group also provides internal training to staff and pays out

bonuses based upon staff performance and profits of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and good corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and

maximizing shareholders' interests.

The Company has followed the principles and complied with all
applicable code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix |4 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 22 June 2009 (the “Listing Date"), save for the deviation

from code provision A.2.1 which is explained below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the statutory requirements and the CG Code and align
with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of the directors, senior management and relevant employees
(who, because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its securities) of the Group (the “Own Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")

as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific equiry of all directors, all the members of the Board
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2009 (the “Relevant Period”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Own Code during the Relevant Period
by the senior management and relevant employees was noted by the
Company.

EEER $Is’z"=

TEEBRER
ARABNRBBENDEER - AR
EFR((EFR1)EE  R2APNLEE

BERARAEERRRRERAERREAX
alE= =00k

AAREBEROR-ZZEZENFAA=FT=H
([LTEH)EEBHERIMARA
([ pr)) EREMER  —HE ﬁi%&
%Lmﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬁ%b%ﬁm%ﬁmiﬁ
AR (EEEARTA]) MAEERT
AMEY - BRIREE T XPTEEEA2.1&5F A
4 o

ARAETHABRADAEBNREERER

BAECEERESR U TRRICEERR
Mo BRETAERARERERTULA

ARMER

EENEHX D

ARBEHRM—ENL EHRBME T FAE

ZAEMBOAEFETEFRINREST
A (TR TWD%%EEM MERBRAT
RTUERAEEES EF&HW

@E(%W&EK%IW%E ﬁ%
AARFEABFHFOAR ﬁﬂ%wwéﬂ)
EEE#%#%UKA SFAIL)

BRERESFEARE DS SHETE
CHEERELTEREE-_SEAET A

:+—H¢%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁb—ﬁkﬁﬁ%
STRAIRA DR SFRIFTSREER - RABY

fEl - ARRE IR ER A S REIEE AR
BEERARATANEN -

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 o



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and Role

The Board currently comprises two executive directors, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive directors as

follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chun Chi Wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Lai Wun Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan lu Seng
Mr. Chan Kam Hung
Mr. Leung Chong Shun

The Board has in its composition a balance of expertise, skills and
experience necessary for independent decision-making. The Board at all
times during the Relevant Period met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Save that Ms. Lai Wun Yin is the
spouse of Mr. Chun Chi Wai, there are no other financial, business, family

or other material relationships among other members of the Board.

The Board, with the assistance of the senior management, forms the core
management team of the Company. The Company has formalised and
adopted the written terms on the division of functions reserved to the
Board and those delegated to the management. The Board has the overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and development
plan and making key decisions of the Group whereas the senior
management are responsible for the supervision and implementation of
the plans of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group's business

operations.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive directors are independent
in character and judgment in accordance with the independence

guideline as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board meetings

Notice of regular board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other board meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Agenda setting out the matters to be discussed and the
relevant documents are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable

time before the meeting.

Draft minutes of each board meetings is circulated to the directors for
comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation. Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept by the duly
appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and are available for
inspection by all directors at all reasonable time. All directors have full
access to the board papers and related materials, and are provided with

adequate information on a timely manner.

During the Relevant Period, two full board meetings were held and the

individual attendance records of each director is set out below:

Name of directors

ExEHE
Mr. Chun Chi Wai RERELE
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang EZRELE

FEREER-_TTNF
t—A+—B#E)

Mr.Wong Hok Leung
(resigned on | | November 2009)

Ms. Lai Wun Yin R B+
Mr. Chan lu Seng BRIEZE &4
Mr. Chan Kam Hung R 87 2 o 4
Mr. Leung Chong Shun REINE 5 &
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.l of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not

be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chun Chi Wai currently holds both the offices of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Board considers that the current
structure of vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person will not impair the balance of power and authority
within the Board as all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board as well as the senior management of the

Company.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning

and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of the service contract of Ms. Lai Wun Yin, as the non-
executive director, is one year commencing from the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other, whereas all the independent non-executive
directors are appointed for an initial term commencing from 22 May
2009 to the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. All directors (including the executive directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the annual
general meeting of the Company and are eligible for re-election pursuant

to the Company’s articles of association.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of
this report, the remuneration committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. Chan lu Seng (Chairman), Mr. Chun Chi Wai, Mr. Chan Kam
Hung and Mr. Leung Chong Shun, the majority of them are independent

non-executive directors.

EEERRSE

ERRATHAH

TEERT
2B D

BISA2 MEHRTE L FE RITHAEE
FIM AR —ARE -

RERAEERBEELARAZEIRFRITRE
H-BEX22RR ANMEERARRDER
RRAIZEZENERRRAEEEEREDL
HEFRITHBEA - ARTORABRED
SERESENRETYE -

i%awutﬁir&ﬂ'ﬁ ﬁﬁﬂf/\%ﬁﬁﬁ
NERHEBES-—WAZEN - TAMEL
AONREAREREBREREKR

ERITES
FRTEFRREBELTHORBENHRAAE
FTTHEHER—F TREMN-—FTEZE—
HELATPRIEANELEEEMBAMAL -
MEEMBBLFATESFNIHRRE -
ZENFRAZTZHRERRATERR
BFEAREHERKIL 2RBEF (BRENTE
F)HARBANRABERARE=FRD
—RERRAMBREFREHREETLE
BREEET -

FWNESE

ARAERUFEWEES  YHEREXER
STAIFFTEEBERE - NABRERY - F
MEES@RXEMAKE  BRERBELE (X
) REBEE RBEXERRAIBRL
B IERBERBIFNTES -



Corporate Governance Report

The remuneration committee makes recommendations to the Board on
the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration packages
of the directors and the senior management. The remuneration
committee is also responsible for establishing formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in

deciding his/her own remuneration.

The remuneration committee held two meetings during the Relevant
Period to review and approve the remuneration and bonus package of
the directors and the senior management, the employment contracts of
new senior staff and other related matters. It has also reviewed and
approved the level of pay-rise, fringe benefits and payment of
discretionary bonus to the general staff. In determining the emolument
payable to directors, the remuneration committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the directors and the desirability

of performance based remuneration.

The attendance records of the meetings of the remuneration committee

are set out below:

Name of committee members

ZEEMERSE

Mr. Chan lu Seng (Chairman) RBERE (F/E)
Mr. Chun Chi Wai REREE

Mr. Chan Kam Hung BR 85 1 & &

Mr. Leung Chong Shun 2 EIE% £

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company and
the market conditions, with a view to appoint to the Board suitable
candidates with relevant experience and capabilities to maintain and

improve the competitiveness of the Company.
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, including the independence status in the case of an
independent non-executive director, the Company’s needs and other

relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

The appointment, re-election and removal of directors are governed by
the Company'’s articles of association. Pursuant to the Company's articles
of association, any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting, whereas any
director appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. In addition, at each annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the directors shall retire from office by
rotation and be eligible for re-election thereat, such that all directors
should be subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting at

least once every three years.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION AND REPORTING
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the financial year ended 3| December 2009, the remuneration
paid to Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company's external
auditors in respect of audit services and other non-audit services
amounted to approximately HK$3,200,000 and HK$3,112,000

respectively.

The non-audit services included services in preparation of the accountant
report for the initial public offering amounting to approximately
HK$2,986,000, tax related services and others.

The statement of the Company’s external auditors regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2009 is set out in the section of “Independent

Auditor's Report” in this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has been established with written terms of
reference based upon the provisions and recommended practices of the
CG Code. As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Hung
(Chairman), Mr. Chan lu Seng and Mr. Leung Chong Shun.

The Board considers that each of the audit committee members has
broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
legal, business and accounting in the audit committee. The composition of
the audit committee complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the audit committee is a

former partner of the Company's existing external auditors.

The main duties of the audit committee include the following:

* To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors before

submission to the Board.

* To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to
the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

*  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system, risk management system

and the associated procedures.

The audit committee provides supervision on the internal control system
of the Group and reports to the Board on any material issues and makes

recommendations to the Board.
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During the Relevant Period, the audit committee has reviewed the
Group's interim results and the results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2009, the Group’s quarterly results for the nine months
ended 30 September 2009, the respective financial reporting, risk
management and compliance procedures, the report on the Company's
internal controls and processes and the independence, remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The audit committee has
also reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group including the adequacy of the resources,
qualifications and experience of the employees of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The audit committee held two meetings during the Relevant Period and

the attendance records are set out below:

Name of committee members

ZEEEMENRS

Mr. Chan Kam Hung (Chairman) PR &R 1 L& (£ )
Mr. Chan lu Seng BRIZE K&

Mr. Leung Chong Shun 28l lI8 5% &

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for the system of internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the Relevant
Period, the Board has appointed an external professional consultant to

perform an internal controls and system review.

The Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound internal
control system to safeguard the interest of the shareholders and the
Group's assets. The Board has delegated to the executive management
the implementation of the system of internal control and the review of
all relevant financial, operational, compliance and risk management

functions within an established framework.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements
for each financial year are prepared to reflect a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profitability and cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 3| December 2009.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2009, the directors have adopted appropriate and
consistent accounting policies and made prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimations. The directors are responsible for maintaining
proper accounting records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the
state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movements of the

Group at all time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group's performance to the shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to the shareholders,
additional information is also available to the shareholders on the website

of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

Our board of directors currently consists of six members, including two
executive directors, one non-executive director and three independent

non-executive directors.

Executive Directors
Chun Chi Wai (&), aged 44

Mr. Chun is an executive director and the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Chun is also the director of Wellrun Limited,
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Chun serves as a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company and is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chun co-founded the Group with Ms. Lai
Wun Yin and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
management. Mr. Chun has over |6 years of experience in the business of
scrap metal recycling and trading, port operations and shipping, including
serving as general manager and executive director of Whampoa Materials
(Hong Kong) Company Limited from 1995 to 2000 and Guangzhou
Zhujiang Port Co. Ltd from 2003 to 2006. He served as a director of the
33rd and the 35th term of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital.
From 2004 to 2006, he was a committee member of the People's Political
Consultative Committee of Guangzhou Huang Pu District. Mr. Chun s
currently a standing committee member of the China Association of
Metal Scrap Utilization and a director of Guangzhou Zhujiang Port Co.
Ltd. Mr. Chun is the spouse of Ms. Lai Wun Yin.

Jiang Yan Zhang (Z L &), aged 55

Mr. Jiang is an executive director of the Company and the Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. Mr. Jiang also serves as a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr Jiang joined the Group in
December 2003 and is responsible for various aspects of overall
operations such as production, procurement, quality control, marketing
and sales. Mr. Jiang has over 38 years of experience in the business of
metal production. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Jiang served various
management positions in Guangdong Shaogang Company Group from
1970 to 2003, including the manger of scrap steel department and the
safety and environmental department. Mr. Jiang is currently a director of
Guangzhou Zhujiang Port Co. Ltd. Mr. Jiang received his Bachelor's
Degree in Philosophy from Zhongshan University in 1989 and a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from Macau University of Science and
Technology in 2003.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Non-executive Director
Lai Wun Yin (BB &), aged 39

Ms. Lai is a non-executive director of the Company and serves as a non-
executive director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lai co-
founded the Group with Mr. Chun Chi Wai. Ms. Lai had secondary
education and has over 9 years of experience in financial and

administrative management. Ms. Lai is the spouse of Mr. Chun Chi Wai.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Lu Seng (FR1E £ ), aged 65

Mr. Chan joined the Company as an independent non-executive director
on 22 May 2009. Mr. Chan also serves as the chairman of the
remuneration committee and is a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has served as the Chairman of Vimchamp Holdings
Ltd., a company in the garment manufacturing and property investment
business, for over 2| years. Mr. Chan was appointed as a Justices of the
Peace for being actively involved in a variety of public service
organisations and has been awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in Hong
Kong in recognition of his service. He has also served on a number of
public boards, including a lay observer of Independent Police Complaints
Council Lay Observer Scheme (IPCC), an appointed councilor of Tsuen
Wan District Council and the Chairman of Tsuen Wan District Fight
Crime Committee.

Chan Kam Hung (Bf 82 7 ), aged 51

Mr. Chan joined the Company as an independent non-executive director
on 22 May 2009. Mr. Chan also serves as the chairman of the audit
committee and is a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 26 years of auditing, accounting and
corporate management experience and he held senior corporate
management positions in multi-national companies and listed companies
in Hong Kong. He is currently an executive director and chief operating
officer of Road King Infrastructure Limited (Stock code: 1098). Mr. Chan
received a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of Sydney
in 1980. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of
Australia and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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LEUNG Chong-shun (2 &ll ), aged 44

Mr. Leung joined the Company as an independent non-executive director
on 22 May 2009. Mr. Leung is also a member of the audit committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Leung joined Woo,
Kwan, Lee & Lo, a law firm in Hong Kong since 1989 and became a
partner of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo since September 1997. Mr. Leung has
served as an independent non-executive director of Lijun International
Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co.,, Ltd. (Stock code: 2005) since October
2005 and China National Materials Company Limited (Stock code: 1893)
since July 2007. Mr. Leung received a Bachelor of Laws degree in 1988
and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 1989 from the University of
Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England & Wales
in 1991 and 1994 respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Below is the biography of each of our key management members:

Fung Ka Lun (532 @), aged 35

Mr. Fung, joined the Group in November 2009, is the Corporate Finance
President and the Group Vice President of the Company. Mr. Fung is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business management
and corporate finance. Mr. Fung was graduated from the Imperial College
of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London, with a
Master of Science degree in Finance. Mr. Fung has extensive experience in
corporate finance and financial management. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Fung was a director in the Investment Banking Division of
UBS AG. Before joining the banking sector, Mr. Fung worked in the Audit
Division of KPMG.
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Lam Po Kei Kenneth Greg (T8 &), aged 43

Mr. Lam, joined our Group in 2007, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam also serves
as a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Lam is responsible for
supervising financing and accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Lam has
over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management. Mr.
Lam holds Master of Business Administration jointly awarded by the
University of Wales and University of Manchester. Mr. Lam is a qualified
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Liu Hui (211E), aged 40

Mr. Liu, joined our Group in 2009, is the general manager of Non-Ferrous
Metals of the Group and a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Liu
is responsible for overseeing the overall operations of non-ferrous
business of the Group. Mr. Liu has over twenty years of experience in
trading, financing and investment of non-ferrous metals business. Mr. Liu
graduated from Zhejiang University in China with a bachelor degree in
Economic Management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was the
director of metals & mining division of BNP Paribas Asia. Prior to BNP
Paribus Asia, Mr. Liu was the marketing manager of base metals for BHP
Billion in China.

Ma Xian Ming (55 B B7), aged 39

Mr. Ma, joined our Group in 2009, is the general manager of Ferrous
Metal Department of Ferrous Scrap Division in Shanghai Region. Mr. Ma
is responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the ferrous
business of the Group. Mr. Ma has over |4 years of experience in the
industry. Mr.Wu holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
Macau University of Science and Technology and the designation of
senior economist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ma was the
senior manager of sales and marketing department of Baosteel Resources

Company Ltd.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Wang Yu Zhang (£ £3&), aged 44

Mr. Wang, joined our Group in 2003, is the general manager of a major
subsidiary of the Group in Guangzhou. Mr. Wang is responsible for
overseeing the management and operations of the subsidiary. Mr. Wang
graduated from Guangxi University with a bachelor degree in machinery
manufacturing and design and holds the designation of intermediate
economist in the PRC. Mr. Wang has over |6 years of experience in the

administrative management and project investment.

LI Wen-zhe (X ), aged 69

Mr. Li, joined our Group in 2003, is the deputy general manager and the
General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Li is
responsible for the operation and management matters. Mr. Li has over
33 years of experience in metal production and machinery management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked as the head of the Guangzhou
Mechanical Engineering Research Institute. Mr. Li is a certified senior

engineer. Mr. Li graduated from Dalian University of Technology.

Wu Yue Xing (R 5 ), aged 45

Mr. Wu, joined our Group in 2007, is a director and a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group in Zhangjiagang. Mr. Wu is
responsible for overseeing the management and operations of the
subsidiary. Mr.Wu has over 25 years of experience in the operation of
metal recycling industry. Since 1983, Mr.Wu has developed and operated
various business in Zhangjiagang, including scrap metal collection and
recycling depots, metal processing and scrap metal recycling. In 2007, Mr.
Wu was elected as a committee member of the People’s Political

Consultative Committee of Zhangjiagang City.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Liang Jian Xiong (R ), aged 48

Mr. Liang, joined our Group in 2006, is the general manager of a
subsidiary of the Group in Tianjin. Mr. Liang is responsible for overseeing
its management and operations of the subsidiary. Mr. Liang has over 10
years of experience in operations and financial management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Liang was the vice general manager and financial
controller of Shenzhen Guangnan Investment and Development
Company Limited.

Wu Han Ming (R £ ), aged 48

Mr. Wu, joined our Group in 2009, is the general manager of corporate
financing in China region. Mr.Wu is responsible for the strategic planning
and business management and corporate finance in the PRC region. Mr.
Wu has more than 29 years of experience in the field of banking and
financing industry. Mr. Wu graduated from Guangdong Provincial Party
School, majoring in Financial Management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Wu held senior position with various financial institutions in the PRC. Mr.
Wu was formerly the general manager of sales division of Guangzhou

Rural Credit Cooperatives Union.
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The directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 18 July 2007.

Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the public listing of the Company's shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™), the
Company became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 30 September 2007. Details of the
reorganisation scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 10 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange with
effect from 22 June 2009 (the "Listing Date").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In 2009, our largest supplier accounted for 20% (2008: 17%) of the total
purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised 66% (2008: 45%) of our

total purchases.

In 2009, our largest customers accounted for 25% (2008: 30%) of the
total revenue. The five largest customers comprised 71% (2008: 73%) of

our total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors’ Report
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 52.

No interim dividend was declared for the year. The Board has proposed
a final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2009 subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, amounting to HK$125,400,000 and
the retention of the remaining profit. Upon approval of the shareholders,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on about 7 June 2010 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company as at 27 May 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25
May 2010 to Thursday, 27 May 2010, both days inclusive. During such
period, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend and for attending the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 May 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group had additions of HK$20,712,000 to property,
plant and equipment to expand and upgrade the Group's production

facilities.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note |5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders, including
the share premium account, capital reserve and accumulated losses,

amounted to approximately HK$2,068 million as at 31 December 2009.
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Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company’s articles of association, dividends shall be distributed out of
the retained profits or other reserves, including the share premium

account and capital reserve, of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the

Company are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUNDS RAISED BY THE COMPANY’S INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange during the year and
proceeds, net of listing expenses, amounted to approximately HK$ 1,685
million, were raised by the public offering. During the year ended 3|

December 2009, the net proceeds were utilised as follows:
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HK$’million

HEAT

Redemption of secured guaranteed senior notes ~ BE B B H R ERELEE 78]
Purchase of inventory BERH 449
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WENE BERREMNES 33

plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERR 20
Deposits paid for land use rights T EREMTRES 18

The remaining balance of the net proceeds was deposited in banks in the
People’s Republic of China and Hong Kong and will be used for the

intended uses as set out in the Prospectus.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chun Chi Wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr.Wong Hok Leung (Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on | | November 2009)

Non-executive director:

Ms. Lai Wun Yin

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan lu Seng

(appointed on 22 May 2009)
Mr. Chan Kam Hung
(appointed on 22 May 2009)
Mr. Leung Chong Shun
(appointed on 22 May 2009)

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company's articles of association,
Mr. Chun Chi Wai, Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang and Ms. Lai Wun Yin shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Chan lu Seng, Mr. Chan Kam Hung and Mr. Leung Chong Shun shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the directors of the Company
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company:
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EFENKRSG - HEARBRES
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RZZEZAF+-_A=1t—R AXRAES
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Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of

shares held the Company

Name of director Capacity FilkE®RT WHEATSH#HT
B S LERNE kEESE
Mr. Chun Chi Wai Interest of controlled corporation (note) 642,149,181 61.45%
REBSRE REEHAE S ()
Beneficial owner 1,089,000 0.10%
EmBEBA
Ms. Lai Wun Yin Interest of spouse (note) 643,238,181 61.55%
RGBRL ALiE R (P RE)

Note: Mr. Chun Chi Wai is deemed to be interested in 642,149,181
ordinary shares held by Wellrun Limited (“Wellrun") as the sole
beneficial owner of Wellrun. Ms. Lai Wun Yin is the spouse of Mr
Chun Chi Wai and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Mr. Chun Chi Wai.

W BEREEBREEDNTEERAA (4
BNOE-—BEHEA  WRARE
1T IB A5 642,149,181 % I 8 Bk w0 4
o BRBLTNEEREENE
B WRAEEREREEMBFRND
I HE & o



(i) Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company:

Number of
options/
underlying

Directors’ Report
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(i) ARABHEBRONER

Percentage
of the issued

share capital

shares held of the Company
Name of director Capacity FiisERE Exercisable period EXATCET
EEnE 5t HERHHE TR REBESI
Mr. Chun Chi Wai Beneficial owner 1,930,502 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
REEELE E5BEAA —E-ZFRAZTZHZE
—tEXAT/N\H
Beneficial owner 1,930,502 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
ERBEAA “Z——¥RAZT=HE
—T—+tFRATNR
Beneficial owner 1,930,502 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
ERfiAA “E-HfRNAZtZHE
—tEXAT/N\H
Interest of spouse (note) 643,500 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
B e (MaE) “Z-TFRAZTCZHE
—Z—+tFRATNR
Interest of spouse (note) 643,501 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
BB () —E-——%R"AZ+=HEZE
—tEXATNH
Interest of spouse (note) 643,501 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
BB 2 (B et) “E-_FRAZT=HE
—T—tFRATN\R
7,722,008 0.74%
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang Beneficial owner 514,800 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.05%
ZRERE ERBEAA “E-TFRAZTZHE
—tFRXATNRB
Beneficial owner 514,801 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.05%
E5EAA —E-——f%R"AZ+=HEZE
—E—+tFXATNR
Beneficial owner 514,801 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.05%
ERBEAA “E-_HRAZT=HE
—tFRXATNRB
1,544,402 0.15%
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Number of Percentage
options/ of the issued
underlying share capital
shares held of the Company
Name of director Capacity FiisERE Exercisable period EXATCET
sz 5 HERGHE T REES
Ms. Lai Wun Yin Beneficial owner 643,500 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
RBBELL ERBEAA —E-EFXAZTZHE
—E—+FRATNH
Beneficial owner 643,501 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
EaAA “EZ——fXA-tZHE
—tFEXAT/\H
Beneficial owner 643,501 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.06%
ERBEAA —E-"FXAZt=HEZE
—E—+FRATNH
Interest of spouse (note) 1,930,502 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
B Ema (at) “E-TFRAZTCZRE
—tFXAT/N\H
Interest of spouse (note) 1,930,502 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
B EEs () —E-——% A-Z+=RHZE
—E—+FRATN\H
Interest of spouse (note) 1,930,502 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.18%
B Ema (at) “T-“fR A-t+=REZE
—tFXAT/\H
7,722,008 0.74%
Mr. Chan lu Seng Beneficial owner 128,700 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
REE &4+ ERBEAA “Z-TFRAZTCZHE
—T—tFXATN\R
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
EREAA —T——%R"AZ+=HEZE
—tEXATN\H
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
EREAA “E-—FRAZT=HE
—T—tFXRATNR
386,100 0.04%
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Number of Percentage
options/ of the issued
underlying share capital
shares held of the Company
Name of director Capacity FiisERE Exercisable period EXATCET
EEnE 54 HERBEE TEH REBESI
Mr. Chan Kam Hung Beneficial owner 128,700 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
PR SRR 5L A ERBEAA —E-EFXAZTZHE
—E—tFXAT/N\R
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
EREBA :g__i/\ﬂ T=H%E
Z—+FX AT/\B
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
ERBEAA —E-"FR AZtT=HEZE
“T—+tFXATN\A
386,100 0.04%
Mr. Leung Chong Shun  Beneficial owner 128,700 22 June 2010 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
2818 5 & ESEAA —E-EFRNAZTZHE
—tEXATNH
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2011 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
ERBEAA —E-—FXAZ+=HEZE
—Z—+tFRATNR
Beneficial owner 128,700 23 June 2012 - 18 June 2017 0.01%
ERfAA “E-HRNAZtZHE
—tEXATNH
386,100 0.04%
Note: Mr. Chun Chi Wai and Ms. Lai Wun Yin are husband and wife and Mz ZEREERRABL T RRIFH
therefore are deemed to be interested in the options held by each 7 AREAREREFMHEREN
other. i -
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of associated (i) 2~ &) 18 B A B IR (0 Ko A8 8 AR 1) /Y 4F
corporation of the Company: B
Percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital
Name of issued ordinary of the associated
associated shares held corporation

Name of director Capacity corporation FilsE T EHEEEEE T

Esnz 51 HEZEEE LERBE ¥ N=F )4

Mr. Chun Chi Wai Beneficial owner (note) Wellrun | 100%

RERAE ExnfkA A (M) 4 &

Note: As Wellrun owns more than 50% interest of the Company, Wellrun Pt - R IFEHAE AR RIEIBS0%H
is an associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. Bam o REBEESFRBEEE - o
Wellrun is also a controlled corporation of Mr. Chun Chi Wai under EDARARABERE o RIBEE
the SFO.The entire issued share capital of Wellrun is owned by Mr. HEREBEGD  HETARER
Chun Chi Wai, who is a director of the Company and the sole TENREEE - RRAIERER
director of Wellrun. HENE-—EERERMALEHES

HENZPEEITRA -

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company ~ B EXFEZEEN  BMEARFAESHES
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, BBMEALTR _ZEANF+_A=T—H0%&
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated ~ ZA2A &) sk £ A A ARH A AT RBKG - HE
corporations as at 31 December 2009, R EFEEEMERIAR -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRE

As at 31 December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders HRZZZAFEF+_A=+—H8 BLEXHE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows BZETEZ (MATERE) EFHI - BX
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain RARBESRPEGIIFIB6HRTFENETR
directors, who are also substantial shareholders of the Company, the — BREEM @ THBREREMEADAEAR A
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests BEETREANEEERRASE -

and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company.



Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Name of shareholder Capacity

e 5t

Wellrun Beneficial owner (note)

438 ExZBEAA ()

Baring Asset Management Limited Investment manager
JTH'L ﬁ z«<

ordinary shares held
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Percentage
of the issued
Number of issued share capital

of the Company

FHERT HEXAFESHT
TEkHE BREES
642,149,181 61.45%
59,597,600 5.70%

Note: Wellrun is the controlled corporation of Mr. Chun Chi Wai, who is a

director of the Company and the sole director of Wellrun.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares

of the Company as at 31 December 2009.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company's share option schemes are set out in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the directors hold any
interests in any competing business against the Company or any of its

subsidiaries during the year ended 3| December 2009.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from the controlling
shareholders, Mr. Chun Chi Wai and Wellrun in respect of their
compliance with the non-competition undertaking since the Listing Date.
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
undertaking and are of the view that Mr. Chun Chi Wai and Wellrun have
complied with the non-competition undertaking during the period
between the Listing Date and 31 December 2009.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of these connected transactions during the year are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of those
connected transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Group within the meaning of Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform agreed upon
procedures in respect of the certain continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditor has reported their factual findings on these

procedures to the board of directors.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions and the report of the auditor and have confirmed

that the transactions have been entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the period on and after the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date up to 31 December
2009, in the opinion of the directors, the Company has followed the
principles and complied with all applicable code provisions under the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1. as set out in the Company’s corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2009 in pages 21 to 29 of the

annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of the directors, senior management and relevant employees
(who, because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its securities) of the Group (the "Own Code”) on terms no less exacting

than the required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2009. No incident of
non-compliance of the Own Code during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2009 by the senior management and relevant

employees was noted by the Company.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the three independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’'s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of these schemes are set out in

note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$1,000,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro rata basis to

existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
with the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the period from the Listing Date to 3|
December 2009.

@ China Metal Recycling (Holdings) Limited |¢@ﬁ§ﬁ$ﬁﬁ (Z8%) ARAF
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AUDITOR B8R

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general  ARARBEREERREFASRZREER
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the B o EER H ST MIT AR QR AZE

Company. il e

On behalf of the Board REREES

Chun Chi Wai FER

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 19 April 2010 BB —T-ZTEWMA+NA
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA METAL
RECYCLING (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Metal
Recycling (Holdings) Limited (the
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 169,

“Company”) and its subsidiaries

which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 April 2010

Independent Auditor’s Report
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. h Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

P
({aN / GEEEWER
For the year ended 3! December 2009

BE-—ZTFAF+-_A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—2EAE —FENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
loFs3 FET TE T
Revenue W &= 7 9,063,175 6,526,594
Cost of sales i & B A (8,273,221) (6,031,534)
Gross profit E7 789,954 495,060
Other income H A 8 7,973 21,998
Distribution and selling expenses DR IHER X (6,559) (7,804)
Administrative expenses THRX (83,548) (49,756)
Other expenses H k% (13,365) —
Net (loss) gain on derivative fTEer T A (BE)
financial instruments W 5 (72,336) 16,181
Finance costs BMEKR 9 (120,425) (147,413)
Share of result of an associate EiE—REERARER |8 1,941 2,654
Profit before taxation R B2 A4 Al 503,635 330,920
Income tax expense P15 8 X 10 (24,950) (23,007)
Profit for the year F g A I 478,685 307,913
Exchange difference arising MEBESXHELZHE
on translation, representing BEAEMEEEA
other comprehensive
income for the year — 28,247
Total comprehensive FRAZEBABHE
income for the year 478,685 336,160
Profit for the year attributable to: ATNBIBERIEFAEN
Owners of the Company AREHEE A 478,422 294,431
Minority interests DERRER 263 13,482
478,685 307913
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b Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEXEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EENE —TENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ik FER TET

Total comprehensive income for AT BEREFA

the year attributable to: FPHRAELE
Owners of the Company AREHEE A 478,422 319,027
Minority interests DR 2 263 17,133
478,685 336,160
HK cents HK cents
Bl beql]

Earnings per share FRE |4

~ basic - EX 54.28 42.06
— diluted - 83 54.10 42,06
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GaMBRAR

At 31 December 2009
WMo EmENES ZH=+—H

2009 2008
ZEBAF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
fif it FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 15 88,989 82,537
Investment properties REME 16 1,731 1,770
Prepaid lease payments - BERNEER
non-current portion — FFEIHE S 17 94,529 97,989
Interest in an associate P — FRI B 2 1% B B B 2 18 97,113 67,046
Deposits paid for acquisition of WENE BEKX
property, plant and equipment BEHENESR 55,130 15,304
Deposits paid for land use rights tTHERED MRS 45,653 12,500
383,145 277,146
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rE 19 727,538 257,536
Trade and other receivables B REMERFIER
and deposits Be 20 2,524,325 835,573
Bills receivable JE I 2 1% 21 248,067 304,601
Prepaid lease payments - BERNEER
current portion — AR |7 3,460 3,460
Amount due from an associate FE U — FET Bk & X R RRIB 18 —_ 54
Amount due from a JE U — fir 42 AR AR 3R RRIE
controlling shareholder 22 — 771
Deposit paid to a related party NTREALNES 23 115 [15
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIE 24 36,940 |, 446
Taxation recoverable A] Yo B #1E - 2,182
Pledged bank deposits BEERBITERN 25 210,376 72,455
Restricted bank deposits TREBITER 26 62,284 3,63
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIRE 26 554,417 343,293

4,367,522 1,825,117
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b Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GaMBRAR

At 31 December 2009
B oEENFESfZH=+—H

2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
fif i FET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENKE 27 981,796 52,330
Discounted bills BIRER 28 139,810 304,601
Amounts due to minority JE T HfY B 22 A
shareholders of subsidiaries DB E TR 29 - 1,286
Amount due to a director BN —RESZHHRIE 30 — 2,219
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA 24 62,144 127
Bank borrowings RITBR
— due within one year - —FREH 31 451,576 128,664
Secured guaranteed senior notes BHBEERELZR 32 - 696,724
Taxation payable FE 818 25,072 8,369
1,660,398 1,194,320
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,707,124 630,797
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERABRRBAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,090,269 907,943
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bank borrowings - RITEK
due after one year - —F&IH 31 — 10,909
Other long-term payable H it & HA e 3RO 34 454 682
454 [1,591
NET ASSETS EERE 3,089,815 896,352
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GaMBRAR

At 31 December 2009
WMo EmENES ZH=+—H

2009 2008
—EBhE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
fif it FET TE T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E

Share capital L& 35 105 —
Reserves B 3,009,876 831,554

Equity attributable to ARBIEERA
owners of the Company JE1E = 3,009,981 831,554
Minority interests DEIRRE = 79,834 64,798
TOTAL EQUITY mRER 3,089,815 896,352

The consolidated financial state
and authorised for issue by the

are signed on its behalf by:

ments on pages 52 to 169 were approved EFECN_Z-ZHENATNABHRETER
board of directors on 19 April 2010 and ~ B FIEH N E2EEF 1698 iR A M5 K
x TATIEFHKRARARE:

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF



b Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

r
.., / GEEZEIR
For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERARL
Share Minority
Share  Share Capital Exchange options Retained interests
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits  Total 28 Total

Rx RHEE E4RE EXRRG BRERE REEA a3 RRER @it
HKF000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér TEr TErn TEr TEr TErn TEr TEn  TEn

At | January 2008 RZFENF-A-H — — 161370 1172 — 105436 2/8527 34759 313286
Profit for the year ERET — — — — — 294 29441 13480 307913
Exchange difference arising BEELNEL 2R

on translation = = —  145% = —  M45% 3651 18247
Total comprehensive ER2ENNEE

income for the year = = —  245% — D441 319027 17133 336,160
lssue of share (note 35(i) BT (B 35(ii) — 234000 — — — — 234000 — 234000
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-ARBAR

(note 36) (M 3£36) — — — — — — — 9006 9006
Capital contribution from ~ANBRRH

a minority shareholder RRBILE

of a subsidiary = = = = = = — 390 390
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA=T-H — 134000 161370 36317 — 399867 831554 64798 896352
Profit for the year and EREHRER

total comprehensive 2ERALE

income for the year = = = = — 478420 418422 263 478685
Capitalisation issue AXLES 70 (70) — — — — — — —
lsue of new shares %éﬁ ik 351,787,065 — — — — 1,787,100 — 1,787,100
Cost of issue of new shares FIHRRA — (102215) — — — — (102215) — (102215)
Recognition of equity-settled ﬁﬁw NWERES

share-based payments S EEY — — — — 1510 — 15120 — 15020
Capital contribution from - Fﬁﬁ HEARDH

minority shareholders RRMILE

of subsidiaries — — — — — — — W73 1473
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFT-A=1-8 105 1,918,780 161,370 36,317 15,120 878,289 3,009,981 79,834 3,089,815
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e Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

(i)

0)

the reserve of approximately HK$120,811,000 arising on the
acquisition of the remaining 48% equity interest in a subsidiary of the
Company, Asia Steel (Holdings) Limited, from Mr.Tsui Cham To (“Mr
Tsui"), @ minority shareholder, by Mr. Chun Chi Wai (“Mr. Chun”), the
founder shareholder of the Company in June 2007 and representing
the unaudited consolidated net assets value of Asia Steel (Holdings)
Limited attributable to Mr Tsui as at 30 June 2007 reclassified from
minority interests as deemed contribution by Mr. Chun; and

the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company upon the group
reorganisation in 2006 and the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange of approximately HK$40,559,000.

GEERZYR

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

AEBEMERREEDETIIME AN

(i)

(ii)

RZZEZTLERA  ARAARKRER
EEEE([REE]D) APERFREE
EE(REE]D WETRMNESZERER
RNE & T48%NBEEENRFEH LD
120,811,000 7 * HERBREERZE
SLERNA-THEGERDERRES
ENBERRIERL AR TN ME
BEREBAGDREEZGEEETE
&

RABR-_EE FHETEESHER
BAMBLARRAEENEEEAKRA A
AEDZERAMBEAHROEBLY
40,559,000/ LA &= 58 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHE

= B3
i E

For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE
2009 2008
—BREAE —FFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before taxation BR %% Al 4 7l 503,635 330,920
Adjustments for: I
Amortisation of prepaid T8 M & U
lease payments 3,460 2,061
Depreciation of property, ME - BE R
plant and equipment REFE 13,641 11,012
Depreciation of REMEFRE
investment properties 39 29
Finance costs BERAK 120,425 147413
Interest income ) B A (3,276) (6,657)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REEE 63 45
Net loss (gain) on derivative TEEeMIARFE 72,336 (16,181)
financial instruments (lras) 5 88
Share-based payment expenses AR A7 R 2 15,120 —
Share of result of an associate EiE—REE RARER (1,941) (2,654)
Werite-down of inventories 5 & HOR, — 10,000
Operating cash flows before EEECEEYAMN
movements in working capital RERERE 723,502 475,988
Increase in inventories TFEEm (470,002) (119,910)
(Increase) decrease in trade and BEHREMERFIER
other receivables and deposits g (g m) R > (1,688,752) 31,153
Decrease (increase) in bills receivable FEY E 4R 2 (35 0n) 56,534 (263912)
Net movement in derivative THEerTH
financial instruments 283 (45,813) 10,949
Deposit paid to a related party Ny —2EEALESE —_ (115)
Increase (decrease) in trade 85 R E MR KA
and other payables 12 i Ort ) 929,238 (422,886)
Cash used in operations REEBHANRE (495,293) (288,733)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENPECEMER (8,247) (21,823)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded REPECEMSH 1,564 1,035
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REZENEH 618 48|
NET CASH USED IN REXBEBHAN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReFE (501,358) (309,040)

FH | Annual Report 2009 Q
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
s é EE ﬁ i}?la E %‘

For the year ended 3! December 2009
HE-ZFENFF-A=1—HIFE

2009 2008
—EBhE —EENF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
fif it FET TE T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
(Increase) decrease in BEERBITEN
pledged bank deposits (45 hn) a2 (137,921) 45317
Increase in restricted bank deposits PRI 8R 177 SKIE AN (58,653) (3,631)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WENE  BEKR
property, plant and equipment BEHENESR (40,883) (15,304)
Deposits paid for land use rights THERED MRS (33,153) (12,500)
Capital injection to an associate [a] —fE Bt & A Rl E & (28,126) —
Purchase of property, WEME  BER
plant and equipment i (19,655) (38,330)
Interest received B FE 3,276 6,657
Repayment from (advance to) — B RR IR R &R K
a controlling shareholder (M EBRK) 771 (771)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME  BELRRE
plant and equipment P15 3R 556 587
Repayment from (advance to) — RS D REN
an associate (BE:%-F 9] 54 (47)
Prepayment for land use rights 3R AR TR RROE - (33,991)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo b — P 2 A 36 — 14,030
Decrease in amounts i IIEENETRES
due from minority PR R R IE R A
shareholders of subsidiaries — 3,265
NET CASH USED IN REZBHHAN

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

ReFHE (313,734) (34718)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
GEHERE

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-—TENGF+_A=1—HAILEE

2009 2008
ZEENF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRM TS RIA 1,787,100 234,000
New bank borrowings raised HESHRITER 722,234 356,240
Capital contribution from minority ’E— B R A
shareholders of subsidiaries PHRREE 14,773 3,900
Redemption of secured BOHAAER
guaranteed senior notes BERE (781,215) —
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (410,231) (392,546)
(Decrease) increase in discounted bills BRI O ) 180 (164,791) 276,268
Share issue costs paid BERRHOBEITHA (102,215) —
Interest paid EENEIE (35,934) (75,407)
(Repayment to) advance from a director ~—HREZE (H8) #R (2,219) 2,219
Repayment to minority L= PNEIR o
shareholders of subsidiaries PR R E (1,286) (4,033)
NET CASH FROM MEETHELN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BeRE 1,026,216 400,641
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 0% 8 211,124 56,883
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHHRERRELZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 343,293 277,798
EFFECT OF FOREIGN SEERSHNIE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES — 8,612
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F#RERAELZEY
AT END OF THEYEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash  (BISR1T& & KR &) 554,417 343,293
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B Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on I8 July 2007 under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 22 June 2009. The immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wellrun Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands wholly owned by Mr. Chun
Chi Wai (“Mr. Chun”), the founder shareholder of the Company. The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business
of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands and Suite 4803, Office
Tower Convention Plaza, | Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,

respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in note 43.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollar. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
for the convenience of the shareholders as the Company is listed in

Hong Kong.

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

—BEH

ERARZZEELE LA+ N\BRER
SRERAEBENE(—NA—FENE
G WiREREBI) EREHSFMK
YRERERERAGE - ARAIKRORKZ
ETENFRAT_HEBREBBHAR
SBRAR ([BARAT]) £ - RAA]
MEERGRER AR AN B R B
SHMK T ERRAR - L2 AH
ARAMBIMBRRERSRELE ([RE
EDNZ2EBEHRA - ARTNEMRERE K
FE & E 25 Rl A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islandsf&
EREHBEBIRERESNANE
4803F °

ARAR—HEBRERRAT - EfB R
Ak—HEEAANETELKIARMT
43
ARBNNEEERET - BRARA
REBLET  RTHAERRME K&
MBmRABTES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. [EFAHEHREIETETE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MBREER ([FEME
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) mEEL ]
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and RAEE RAEBEEERATIREES
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (‘“new and AEMAE([ERAGHMAE]) BAGAMN
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified I REERTER] - BT RRE (T35 R
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). RIETBBHBRELED]) -
HKAS | (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial BRGER EHPBHREK
Statements £15%
(Z22+F
RERT)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowings Costs ER G EL f& &R~
235
(ZEELF
RERT)
HKAS 32 & | (Amendments) Puttable Financial ER G ER MEESRIAR
Instruments and Obligations 3257 R 15% FREEENEME
Arising on Liquidation CCHEN,
HKFRS | & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a BEEMBREERN RERWBLRA -
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled FIREREE H[F 2 5] B B B
Entity or Associate B EUNF27R ZERRHKAE
CHED)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and BEEMBREED HEGEREH
Cancellations £25% (BT AK)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about BERAMBRELEN ERIAN
Financial Instruments ETHERTAR) BUERE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BEERNBHREED KEHE
F85%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Embedded Derivatives Ei (BRI BAXITETA
and HKAS 39 EREZE®)
(Amendments) —REZERR
R Rl
£39%% (BT A)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty & (BRI % BB WA E
Programmes EREZEY)
—2BF135%
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Agreements for the

Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from

Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008, except for
the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual
periods beginning or after |
July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 in relation to
the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised

HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

2. ERHEHREETEE

MHRREELN([FEME
wEEH]) @

& (BRMH F5 0 E R AR 1 %
hERBZES)
—2EE 1658

FiE (BR# % HhBIEBRE
mEREZES) FH

—REF16%
&8 (BB A% BEFPEZESE
BEREZES)
—REBE 18
BERBRE RZZZNFHEM
R (1BF]A) BB B ]REE
Al 2Bt - M
—ETNF
+tHA—Bis%
ZEOFEEHME
R B B 7
BELRE BRM
EREEN
BERNBRE NZTENFRM
28| (B3] &) EBBBZEL
3957 5 80E MY
BETOB B

WE R 2 BUE

BRNICATILE SN - IR E AT RS
AIBARERERNHAEEAKER
BEHRNEERBERRLBEAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKAS | (Revised 2007) “Presentation of Financial

Statements”

HKAS | (Revised 2007) has introduced a number of terminology
changes (including revised titles for the financial statements) and

changes in the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in a

redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see note 7).

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:

Disclosures”)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in
relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial

instruments which are measured at fair value.

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2. ERmEMHREETER

HEREEN([FHEME
wEEH]) @

EEERABR (ZTFTLEEE])
[MBRRER]

EBRIEAE IR (SR LEFED 3
ABREBIET (BEETHBRE 22
B)URHBREBARNENEE

FERMBHRERARSRIEESE

BEEMBHREENESR A —RARNEE
B YT EEHAREAENEEER
AP (RHEET) ©

ERMTANEYE
(BEMBRERRETRMBRER &
E21850)

ERPBRELENFEIR BT EAUD
AEFENERIEZAABENENS
= o

Hiﬂ\lﬂ
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
part of Improvements to
HKFRSs 2008!

Improvements to HKFRSs
2009°

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'
Classification of Rights
Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items!

Additional Exemptions for
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Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®
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based Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations'
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h Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after | January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest

in a subsidiary.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. The amendments will be effective from | January
2010, with earlier application permitted. Before the amendments to
HKAS 17, leases were required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have removed such
a requirement. Instead, the amendments required the classification of
leasehold land to be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
|7, that are based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. The application of the amendments to HKAS |7 might affect
the classification of the Group’s leasehold land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will

have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those

used by other members of the Group.
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the minority's
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority's interest in the
subsidiary's equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is

able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised

at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority's proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associate are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investment
in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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e Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

Where a group entity transacts with the associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the associate.

Additional investment in an associate

On additional investment in an associate, goodwill was calculated as
the difference between the cost of additional interest acquired and
the increase in the Group's share of net assets. If the increase in the
Group’s share of net assets exceeds the cost of the additional
interest, the excess is recognised immediately in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated

residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.
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e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for

future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or for administrative purposes, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During
the construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less
any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management).

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments for leasehold land
interests. The prepaid lease payments are stated at cost and are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line

method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.
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e Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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B Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables

and derivative financial instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivable, amount due from an
associate, amount due from a controlling shareholder, deposit paid to
a related party, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

* default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the

impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual

interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities other than derivative financial
instruments (including trade and other payables, discounted bills,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due to
a director, bank borrowings, secured guaranteed senior notes and
other long-term payable) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Guaranteed senior notes

Guaranteed senior notes issued by the Group contain both liability
component and conversion option component in relation to the
warrants attached to guaranteed senior notes. The conversion option
component relating to the warrants that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative and is accounted for separately. At the
date of issue, the guaranteed senior notes (including both the liability
component and conversion option component relating to the

warrants) are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the guaranteed
senior notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and the conversion option derivative is measured at its fair
value. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the guaranteed
senior notes are allocated to the liability and conversion option
derivative relating to the warrants in proportion to their relative fair
values. Transaction costs relating to conversion option derivative
relating to the warrants are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component of the guaranteed
senior notes and amortised over the period of the guaranteed

senior notes using the effective interest method.
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Transaction costs of equity transaction

The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a
deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction that otherwise would have been avoided. The costs of an

equity transaction that is abandoned are recognised as an expense.

Transaction costs related jointly to concurrent offering of some
shares and listing of shares are allocated using a basis of allocation

that is rational and consistent with similar transactions.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and

recognise a collateralised borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions in respect of

share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment

to share options reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions in respect of

share options granted to directors and employees (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, is discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2009, the carrying amount of trade receivables of the Group was
HK$2,301,572,000 (2008: HK$772,256,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from

prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the payables and borrowings disclosed in notes 28, 29, 30,
31, 32 and 34, net of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 26,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associate with each class of the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new shares issues

as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(C))

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables EFRREKFKIEA
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERE BZEE 2 ZEY)
Derivative financial instruments TEEMITA
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost B SH K AR
Derivative financial instruments TEEMITA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, amount due from an associate,
amount due from a controlling shareholder, deposit paid to a
related party, derivative financial instruments, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, discounted bills, amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due to a director, bank
borrowings, secured guaranteed senior notes and other long-
term payable. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with certain of these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt and bill receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39.0% of the total
trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
39.4%) was due from the Group's largest debtor and 89.2% of
the total trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2009
(2008: 92.3%) was due from the five largest debtors. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk will be
gradually reduced as the Group's customer base has been
diversified and revenue has become less concentrated during
the year.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC"),
which accounted for over 90% of the total trade and bills
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

6. €T H #»
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. 2T R »

(b) £REAREEBERBR (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and other sources

of funding and considers the risk is minimal at this stage.

The Group relies on funds raised from the initial public offerings,
bank borrowings and guaranteed senior notes as significant
sources of liquidity. Details of these are set out in notes 35(iii),

31 and 32, respectively.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are variable rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the

reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a
net basis. The liquidity analysis for the Group'’s derivative financial
instruments are prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of

derivatives.
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EHNRBES DN - ZXRBIRE
REEAENTEIANRERS
WRL(REA) RELFEFE - A
REBEERR/AANINMAHMEN
AETERGRENKHEREE
WMASENMESRIANTHES
AMDBRBEENINHBEL -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2T H »

(b) EREREEBERBR (&)

RBESER (F)
REE D KL E R &

Carrying
amount
Weighted  Less than at
average 3 months Total  31.12.2009
effective or on undiscounted i
interest rate demand 3-6 6 months Over cashflows =—ZEh%E
mETYH  SH3ER months  to | year Iyear AEREE +-A=1-H
BIRAI= HEER 3E6f8A 6EAZIE BR1E REAE MEEE
% HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
% AR TER TAn TER TEn TAn
2009 —BEAE
Non-derivative FiTESRMEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER
FIE - 891,598 - - - 891,598 891,598
Discounted bill BREE — 4081 31,225 67,714 — 139810 139,810
Bank borrowings RITER
- fixed rate —ER 4.05 173,243 8,695 221,319 - 403,257 392,734
- variable rate — 28 3.14 34,038 2,398 23,487 - 59,923 58,842
Other long-term payable H R HE AT
A - - - - 454 454 454
1,139,750 42318 312,520 454 1,495,042 1,483,438
Derivatives settled net ~ IR{E & E WITE
TA
Future contracts on EEsBHE
non-ferrous metals an - 58,055 3,193 - - 61,248 61,248
Foreign currency HNEE S #Y
forward contracts - - - 843 - 843 843
Interest rate swap ) = 42 A7 - - - 53 - 53 53
58,055 3,193 896 - 62,144 62,144

FH | Annual Report 2009 Q
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

6. 2T R »

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £REAREEBERBR (&)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

RBESER ()

RBES RN ERERE X (&)

Carrying
amount
Weighted Less than at
average 3 months Total  31.12.2008
effective oron undiscounted i
interest rate demand 3-6 6 months Over  ashflows ZFENE
mETH  SR3EA months to | year lyear XHHEEE T-A=t-H
BRME  HEEX  3Z6EA 6EAZIF BBIE  REEE  HEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEL TET TERL TEL TEL TEL
2008 UL
Non-derivative FriteRaR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ BAREMEFRFE = 28616 = = = 28616 28616
Discounted bills BRRE = 155,406 149,195 = = 304,601 304,601
Amounts due to minority  FERFTB AR
shareholders of subsidiaries DR R A - 1,286 = = = 1,286 1,286
Amount due to a director BRI —HEER - 2219 - — - 2219 2219
Bank borrowings RITEH
- fixed rate -EL8 478 60516 — — — 60516 59,802
- variable rate -8 537 36,805 26,698 6,897 1,495 81,895 9,771
Secured guaranteed ERAEREARR
senior notes 1936 — 141677 — — 141677 696,724
Other long-term payable ~ Ef RHEFZE - - - = 682 682 68)
284,848 923,570 6,897 12,177 1,227,492 [,173701
Derivatives settled net ~ RFELENITETE
Future contracts on FEEEALESN
non-ferrous metals = 127 = = = 127 127
The amounts included above for variable interest rate 1 % Bh 71| 3 528 B I S22 5 &5 21K P A E
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to MEMGEFEAR - EXPAIIETES R
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those BEZFHNETAHEISEY -

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. 2T H »
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ERIEIREEBERBRK (&)
(Continued)
Market risk WS A
(i) Currency risk () FHEER
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RB|EBMR - REE IS
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at ENEREERERARNE
the reporting date are as follows: HEWT :
Liabilities Assets
& BE
2009 2008 2009 2008

“REAE —TTN\F ZBBAF _—TIT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000

FET TET FET TET

United States dollar (“USD”) 37T ([E 7)) 164,746 43,049 22,457 43,604
Renminbi ARE

(“RMB") (TAR®]) - — 88,651 13,533
Hong Kong dollar (*HKD") &7t ([E 7)) 21,917 14,110 49,783 663
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency REE B R EINE G A
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors R-Am EEESENEE
foreign exchange exposure and will use foreign currency HNGE @ B - 3 R A AN R
forward contracts to hedge any significant foreign currency BRE R EMERINE R
exposure.
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&, d GAMERRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. 2T H &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £REIREEBERBRK (&)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) s EE (&)

(i) Currency risk (Continued) () BE¥ER (&)
Sensitivity analysis R DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies of AEEFEEHET AR
USD, RMB and HKD when such currencies are different RET(BZEERAEREE
from the functional currencies of the relevant group EBNEEETRE) IMNER
entities. % o
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% TR LA ERLEREE
appreciation and depreciation in the above foreign ERNEEETEREZEIRN
currencies against the functional currencies of the FRENFEE  HEHNETE
corresponding group entities, except for HKD against USD EEH MY KRHBTHLE
since HKD is pegged to USD and are excluded from the Tt ABURE DT - 5% &M E
sensitivity analysis. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when 2ER A B AR E &RINE R 2
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key RAAMNBRELX  RRE
management personnel and represents management'’s BREHEXSIEAEEHMNT
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign b BRESNERBRERRE
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only EWRINEENEBIER
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items b 7R 4F R A IMEE BB %R 5% B 4208
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change HERE -HRESNIER
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes REWEZHIE - RITEE
mainly trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and JERNZ 5 IERRITER o i
bank borrowings. A positive/negative number below X ARBRETEEBSE
indicates a decrease/an increase in post-tax profit where BERNNEEEFAESS @ 8
the USD, RMB and HKD strengthen 5% against the UTES/ BEERTBRE &R
functional currency of the corresponding group entity. For a FR A /380 o Lt b8 5
5% weakening of the above foreign currency against the HEEEERREERRE
functional currency of the corresponding group entity, there 5% AI@EARERARY
would be an equal and opposite impact. 2o
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMTH @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EMEREEEERBR (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mIEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EERR &)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HREE DT ()
2009 2008
ZBEAE —TTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Decrease (increase) in B m AR (g ) -
post-tax profit:
USD against RMB ETRARE 5,175 620
RMB against USD AREHET (4,433) (677)
HKD against RMB BT AR 822 188
1,564 131
(i) Interest rate risk (i) == [ e
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in AEERHETEERITERR
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings and secured BEREERELERE FBRMH
guaranteed senior notes (see notes 31 and 32 for details). %31&32) ARNRAENRE
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in © JRE H EY BRITE R (%
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 31 for ﬁ%?&ﬁ\ RKTE31) RRTHE
details of these borrowings) and bank deposits. It is the FAEENReRENXER -
Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of ﬁ%lh@%@)ﬂ fERABE
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. BEXRENERR -
The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial AEEEHeMBEMNERAR
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management HNHEBHRANEIRBDE SR
section of this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk BREE—H - AEENRER
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rate ENXERITrEREAEEA
arising from the Group’s RMB and USD variable-rate R RETET B HERAF X
borrowings. E) o

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 @
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For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. 2T H &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SHEAREEEERBEE (£)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s EE (&)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) F=E@EkR (&)

&
sl
Xa
S
=

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based TXNBBREDFIRERS
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank A H#¥ B R 1T 18 A0 A & @
borrowings at the reporting date. The analysis is prepared MEE - DT REN & E H
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of ARAEBFNEBESREARBESF
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A BALEEEMGEE - 50EE
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting MAKARMEZEEEAER
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel HRERN = E R - Y RREE
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably BHMNXQEAEEHNT
possible change in interest rates. fi o

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and i M & £ /T BE 505 B T A
all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax BEEMAERZERTE Bl
profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 would AEEBE_TTAFT_A
decrease/increase by HK$262,000 (2008: HK$312,000). =+ —BIEFE AR HE SN

R /12 10262,000% T (=
EZT)N\F R /H#50312,000

BIL) °
No sensitivity analysis has been prepared for variable-rate HRAARIESRAEHERAR
bank deposits as the directors of the Company consider the BR - @& TEBRITEN
exposure is limited. ETHREDN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. 2T HR »

(b) EMEKREEEERBRK (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mIEEE (&)
(i) Other price risk (iii) H At B % L B
The Group is exposed to other price risk through its future AEERBRERRDHEBRE

contracts on non-ferrous metals at the end of the reporting
period. Management manages this exposure by a team of
specialists, who closely monitors the future markets and the
position of the Group and will take necessary action to
minimise the risk to the Group.The Group's other price risk
is mainly concentrated on future prices quoted in the

relevant exchanges.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to other price risk of future contracts on
non-ferrous metals at the end of the reporting period. A
5% increase or decrease is used when reporting other price
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible

change.

If the quoted prices of the future contracts had been 5%
higher/lower as a result of the changes in the relevant
market commodity prices, post-tax profit for the year
ended 3| December 2009 would decrease/increase by
HK$ 15,806,000 (2008: HK$734,000). The sensitivities are
based on the assumption that the quoted price of the
future contract in the denominated currency increases/
decreases by 5% with all other variables held constant.
These sensitivities should be used with care. The
relationship between currencies and commodity prices is a
complex one and changes in exchange rates can influence
commodity prices and vice versa. For the purpose of the

above sensitivity analysis, exchange fluctuation is ignored.

EeBEHEANNEMERR
b o BIEEEBE K E B
HREE  ZERENERGE
mHEEAEENER - LK
BUNETHEEREESEER
HWRR  EEBEHEMER
RREEEFRBBR S A
HOMBMEER -

BRI

ATHBRESM T RERSH
REETBANMEMERR
& © 5%MIZIRSORIBER M
TEEBRABABEREME
BREBRKRE  DEEEEY
RERREEHMNFE -

WEEANKNRERBBTS
EmEREESmLEA TR
5% BBZE-_ZEENE+=F
=+ BLEEFERBEEFE
B/ # 1115,806,000% 7T (=
TT)\F : 734,000 L) ° B
REDNHESNEFERY
AERNRELA T EE%IMm AT
BHEMIERZARTENR
RBEER WEAREFER-E&
KHEERERNBERER B
RS FEEREL  RZ
MR o RiEE1T LI R E BT
Bl EEEERKLE -
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For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. 2T R »

(c) Fair value (c) aftE

TRMEERERABENAAENK

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option

pricing models for optional derivatives.

determined as follows: ATHAERE :

* the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities o ABRBRERIRGH  URX
(including future contracts on non-ferrous metals) with REBEBRBUETSEEN
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid CREERSBRAE(BEEE
markets are determined with reference to quoted market TBHERNNLAESZ
bid prices and ask prices respectively; EMBmSERBRERERE

E

* the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities s HiemEEKERAE(THE
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in BROTETR)MAAEDREE
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based RUERBRERESMNRARE
on discounted cash flow analysis; and BEAEE &

+ the fair value of derivative instruments (other than future s MMETA(FEEEBHEARAR
contracts on non-ferrous metals) is calculated using quoted I AR BRARETE - i
prices. Where such prices are not available, use is made of BARGZSER MR
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield PTETAMmMS  ARERRE
curve and foreign currency forward rate for the duration of MEAMKABIAFEHRHN

1 FA Uk 7= e AR o o S iR HR R R
FTE - MERTAETARKA
HEETEEAGE -

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BEERR BAUBBRAREH
RAT RN CREERCHAED
REHEREARERE

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMTH &
(c) Fair value (Continued) (c) AR{E (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated REEHBRRREIAZDAAET
statement of financial position B
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRENIERRRELAABEFEL
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, SRIASH  BREBEMGZA
grouped into Levels | to 2 based on the degree to which the RNERENEREEEE_E -

fair value is observable.

+ Level | fair value measurements are those derived from e E-E:ABEFERBAR
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical MEESBBENERTSRE
assets or liabilities. (CRIEHE) -

+ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from s F_E RAREFERERR
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that B BEEXEBEMEEE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as RE-—ENEHE (ﬁ R fE) 5
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). E(NRERE) THEERE AR

i o
2009 2008
ZBEhE —TENFE
Level | Level 2 Total Level | Level 2 Total

E—® B Mat E—1K E_ BEt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$0000 HK$'000
FER FET FET FET FET FET

Derivative financial TEER

instruments =t

— assets —-BE 36,508 432 36,940 446 — 446

— liabilities —-BE (61,248) (896) (62,144) (127) — (127)
There were no transfers between Level | and 2 in the FRN VERF-EHE_E
current year ZEE® -

FH | Annual Report 2009 @



REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect
from | January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker (i.e. the board of directors of the
Company) for the purposes of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard
(HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using a risks and
returns approach. In the past, the Group'’s primary reporting format
was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted
in a redesignation of the Group's reportable segments as compared
with the primary reportable segments determined in accordance
with HKAS 14, nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis

of measurement of segment financial information.

The Group is engaged in the principal business of metal recycling,
involving the recycling of scrap metal into recycled ferrous and non-
ferrous metals, which are the raw materials for a wide range of
metallic end-products. The Group collects scrap steel, scrap copper
and other scrap metals and processes them using advanced
equipment to produce quality recycled scrap metals. From time to
time, the Group also sells scrap metals collected directly to
customers when the quality of such scrap metals meets certain
required standards. The metals can be broadly classified into two

categories:
(i) ferrous metal, namely iron and steel; and
(i) non-ferrous metal, including copper, aluminium, etc.

The board of directors of the Company regularly reviews revenue
analysis by two principal metals processed/sold by the Group and
the Group's consolidated profit for the year for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. As no other
discrete financial information is available for the assessment of
different business activities, no segment information is presented

other than entity-wide disclosures.

7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

W 2= & 93 2B & #
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. B RSBEHE =)

(Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures ERARKE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by principal FAAEERTESESHE DK
metals for the year: BT
2009 2008
ZE2ENF —TENFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Ferrous metal 2658 1,420,545 2,291,541
Non-ferrous metal 2B 7,642,630 4235053
9,063,175 6,526,594
The Group's non-current assets are located in the places of domicile AREFRRPEEONNEHEESEER
of the relevant group entities, namely the PRC, Macau and Hong FreEs - AN - BPIREE - RZF
Kong. As at 31 December 2009 and 3| December 2008, substantially ENFT_A=+—RR-ZENF+
all of the Group'’s non-current assets are located in the PRC. “A=Z+—RB  AKENARLLIERE
BEHMRTE -
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by places of FR - AEERAEN R E & 8 5
domicile and other places for the year: MR E DT
2009 2008
Z2EBNF —TENFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Place of domicile of HAEEE AT
relevant group entities
—The PRC — i 2,586,242 3561417
Other places H A i =
_The PRC —f 5,854,144 2939289
— Hong Kong — &% 572,623 25,888
— Others —Efb 50,136 —
9,063,175 6,526,594
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Each of the three (2008: four) largest customers of the Group
contributes more than 10% of the Group's revenue for the current year.
Revenue of approximately HK$2,254 million, HK$ 1,589 million and
HK$1,572 million are attributed to these three customers, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: approximately HK$ 1,98
million, HK$951 million, HK$833 million and HK$795 million,

respectively) and are mainly attributable to non-ferrous metal sales.

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

7. BB RDEBEE 2

BERRNEE (&)

FR - AEEE=RA(ZTEENEF: @
B)BRAREFPHASENKZERS
10% BERBE_ZTNFE+ A=
T-BLEFENUEERD ADH
2,254,000,0007% 7T * 1,589,000,000/%
7T % 1,572,000,000%8 T (ZZ T\ F
2 Bl % 1,981,000,000% T
951,000,000/ 7t * 833,000,000/ 7T &
795,000,000% L) TERBECLE
HIEHE °

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HibUr A
2009 2008
“BEAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Interest income B YA 3,276 6,657
Net exchange gain [ 5 U 0% 58 1,532 14,365
Rental income Ha WA 567 401
Others H At 2,598 575
7,973 21,998
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMAE
2009 2008
“E2EAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts AR A F ARHEE
wholly repayable within five years MRITERRBEXHE 9,414 22,367
Effective interest expense on secured I B ERE LR
guaranteed senior notes BB R SR X 111,011 125,046
120,425 147,413
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GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.FT R HHE X
2009 2008
% —ET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
The charge (credit) comprises: ER(ER) B
PRC Enterprise Income Tax hERRAENR
Current year KEE 24,950 24,607
Overprovision in prior periods FFEBERE — (1,033)
24,950 23,574
Underprovision of Hong Kong EEBBENGHBETR
Profits Tax in prior years — 10
Deferred taxation EIERTE
Current year REE — (544)
Effect of change in tax rate REEHHTE — (33)
— (577)
24,950 23,007

RERREE  ARARERFEAM
BLORAYEERREMNAELEHAE
B RURBFENSHELEBEE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong either had no assessable profit or

incurred tax losses for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from | January 2008 onwards.

BREFECEMSHRE([EEMEH
) RBBERGH B _FTNF—
A—BE #EMNBLAANRER
25% ©

BEPEBRBEEIER  KAEEDHE
MEARIEMEMMEFR AR ([EM
SHEEERENFEERRCRES
BEEMBH  BR=FRERE - =
ZEN\FREMNGHERF AR &KE
Guangzhou Asia Steel is subject to a 50% tax deduction. FE -

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, Guangzhou Asia Steel Co., Ltd. (*Guangzhou
Asia Steel”) is exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two
years starting from its first profit-making year, followed by a 50%

reduction for the next three years. 2008 is the final year in which

Eiﬁl Annual Report 2009 @



10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under Decree-Law no. 58/99/M, Central Steel (Macao Commercial

Offshore) Limited (“Central Steel”), a Macau subsidiary incorporated

under that Law (called “58/99/M Company”), is exempted from

Macau Complementary tax (Macau income tax) as the 58/99/M

Company does not sell its products to any Macau resident company

during both vyears.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

10.F@HEXZ =)

FIREE CRM) BEA B EREER
DA ([FIRRP])) AIRIEE58/99/MEE
QM EBRPIH B A R (8 A 68/
99MAR]]) ° AR FZ58/99/MA &I £
MMEELEATAREALRAHEE
B B AR 1R 55 58/99/M A < HE & 4
MRPIHTEH CRPIFAEBH) o

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FANREAXHEGS2AKRERNE
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income A MERNT
as follows:
2009 2008
ZBEAE —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Profit before taxation B 1% B & A1 503,635 330,920
Tax at the PRC Enterprise FEBEMAERTE25%
Income Tax rate of 25% 125,909 82,730
Tax effect of expenses not TAMBAXNBETE
deductible for tax purpose 42,936 38,618
Tax effect of income not taxable ERBBANB BT E
for tax purpose (164) (1,616)
Tax effect of share result of E1E — R B & 2 A
an associate XENOBBTE (485) (664)
Tax effect of tax exemption BTHBEBARN
granted to a PRC subsidiary MEREOHBEE - (8,676)
Tax effect of tax exemption BTRFANBARW
granted to a Macau subsidiary MIBRENTH T E (151,672) (94,851)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR W BB RO 2 8,426 8,282
Effect of different tax rates BERPEEE
of subsidiaries operating in B ARRXZE)
Hong Kong or the PRC M2 —_ 240
Decrease in opening deferred tax HAMETRELR
liability resulting from a decrease HIRE R TR
in applicable tax rate BERD — (33)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE - (1,023)
Tax charge for the year FRNH B 24,950 23,007

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.

BB EH NS



= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 2
., / GEUBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

I 1.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1.5 7 it 7
2009 2008
—EBNE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Profit for the year has been arrived at 4 A& 7 B 1 BR
after charging: THBERE -
Directors’ emoluments (note [2) B (HE12) 14,017 3,141
Other staff costs Hith 8 TR 32,064 18,168
Retirement benefit scheme R R
contributions, excluding those (TEREZEES)
of directors 2,180 2,056
Total staff costs BIXABHE 48,261 23365
Auditor’s remuneration A IR A 3,200 2,680
Amortisation of prepaid A 78 & I8 8
lease payments 3,460 2,061
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment 13,641 11,021
Depreciation of investment properties ¥ & ¥ ¥ & 39 29
Listing expenses (included in FiHEX GEARMFEX)
other expenses) 13,365 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BELRREER
and equipment 63 45
Operating lease rentals paid in respect L ENEZNNLLHEER S
of rented premises 18,891 9,902
Werite-down of inventories (included in 77 & #UR (T A S5 & K 4X)
cost of sales) — 10,000
Note: Cost of inventories recognised as an expense approximates cost of Mie: RZMEE  ERRABRIMNEERK
sales as shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive AEGFAZEWER D HREHEE K
income for both years. A% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors for the

year are as follows:

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

12.EE R &S &l

EEHM
FRAENEZHMFBEDOT :

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Share-
allowances  contributions based
Fees HER BHREF payment Total
g 2 B URBHR EH)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TEx FEx TEx FEx
For the year ended HE-ZINE
31 December 2009: +-A=+-H
ILEE
Executive directors: HOEE
Mr. Chun Chi Wai REHEEE - 3,220 5 3,749 6,974
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang FRELE — 204 | 1,000 1,205
Mr.Wong Hok Leung TEREE
(resigned on (RZZTNF
|1 November 2009) T—A+—H
B ft) - 3412 I — 3,483
Non-executive directors; EHITES
Ms. Lai Wun Yin BRBR L 19 - - 1,250 1,329
Mr. Chan lu Seng* BRIBE x4 92 - - 250 342
Mr. Chan Kam Hung* PR S 1 2 A * 92 - - 250 342
Mr. Leung Chong Shun* ) Ry 92 - - 250 342
355 6,896 17 6,749 14,017

Share-based payment in relation to Mr. Wong Hok Leung was adjusted

to zero as a result of his resignation and accordingly the revision of

number of options that are expected to ultimately vest at the end of

the reporting period.

* O BRIERFENBRNNREER
EMABAT  HEETRBN &
SHREREBOBREHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12.EEREEHM o
(Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEHMN (&)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Share-
allowances contributions based
Fees e R RINET payment Total
we H 2B TR AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-_TT)\F
31 December 2008: +=-HB=+—8H
tEE
Executive directors: HOTEE
Mr. Chun Chi Wai REBEE — 430 — 43
Mr. Jiang Yan Zhang ZRERAE = 202 = — 202
Mr.Wong Hok Leung TER%AE = 2,500 8 = 2,508
Non-executive director: FHTES
Ms. Lai Wun Yin RIGE 47+ — — — — —
— 3,132 9 — 3,141

*  Independent non-executive directors

* OBUFRTES
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= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

., 7 oI ERME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12.EERESHM »

HE_TENGEF_A=+—HIEFE
(Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, the number of

EEM

AEBRIUGSFMALT  EZRE

directors and employees are as follows: BMAHBWMT :

2009 2008

ZBEAE —TTNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors 5= 2"
Employees EE 3
5 5
#  Itincludes a director who was appointed on 28 May 2008 and received # BE-—AR-_ZTN\FRA_t/\RE

emoluments of HK$219,000 for the period from | January 2008 to 27
May 2008 as an employee.

The remuneration of the directors are set out above while the

ZEMNEE BH-_ZZ/\FE—HF—RB=
“EENFERA-_t++tH: HEERE
B BR 0% £ 495 219,000% 7T °

EEMeEN L MESKALTHOHNE

remuneration of the remaining individuals are as follows: wmE
2009 2008
=3 1P I LIt
HK$’000 HK$000
FHT FET
Salaries and other allowances FehEAMmEN 2,100 2,238

Retirement benefit BRI 4R

scheme contributions 24 41
Share-based payment PARR A7 1 3R 2,250 —
4,374 2,279




12.

13.

A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

NREEZFREEHN &)

BEME (&)
REOMENF AT HE :

2009 2008

No. of No. of

employees employees

= L “BENF

EEEE EEHE

HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 078 JC £ 1,000,000 7T —_ 3
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7T - —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T | —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,000/% 7T I —

In the two years ended 3| December 2009, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. None of

the directors has waived any emoluments during the two years.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the current year and no
dividend was paid or proposed in respect of the year ended 31
December 2008.

The final dividend of HKI2 cents in respect of the year ended 3|
December 2009 per share has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

BE-_ZTNF+-A=+—BHLLWMF
B ASEMERAESHEMNMEE
REEMAIMARKBE R 6 RLE)
AHEBAHE - BEEENAMFERE
EaMeE -

13.1 8

AERYHESTRFHRE  BE-FTT
NETZRA=F+—HIEFE  REXRF
HEFEKTAE

EECEEREREE_TTNE+_A
ST HLEFEMNKRERESR12E
il HBERENEERREFTEASH
fE ©
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14.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following
data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

14.82KREF

BINNEEBFERRBRE ARIEER
EAREERT -

2009 2008
—EBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TR
Earnings: B
Profit for the year attributable to owners FTEBRERREE
of the Company for the purposes of BN EARA A
basic and diluted earnings per share B A F AT 478,422 294,431
Number of shares: RHEE :

Weighted average number of ordinary

S ESRERRF

shares for the purpose of basic INFE T E @R E

earnings per share 881,438,356 699,999,388
Fffect of diluted potential ordinary BIRAREE R ERE

shares as a result of the share options 8 (E& R M40

granted under the Pre-IPO PR BT B8 2,854,600 —

Scheme (defined in note 40) REBELTRROTE
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREERND

shares for the propose of diluted INFE T 5 EEARE B

earnings per share 884,292,956 699,999,388

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 3|
December 2008 has been adjusted for the 699,998,999 shares
issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue (see note 35(i)), which was

assumed to occur at | January 2008.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options granted under
the Scheme (defined in note 40) because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price of the shares for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not take into
account the Warrants as set out and defined in note 32 as they are

not dilutive.

REHEBE-_ZSNF+_A=1+—
AtFESREAARFOMETY LR
BREE  ERBRERCEITER-T
TENE-—A-—BETMEITN
699,998,9998% % 7 % (R KT #35()) °

RN R 8 (M Z40P REH) PR
RMARTENARRBRENTEESR
BE-_TTNF+-R=+—HLFE
BRHFOmE  RAESREERT
BHRKAEBREL BETE -

AT EE32PT 8 I TSR E ) AR AR AR R
BEEER S ESREEANEY

R AL ERBEE -



e

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

15.9% - BERRE

Machinery,
furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and
Construction improve- equipment
in Motor ments 2  FHl
Buildings  progress  vehicles EY¥ VRE Total
BF HBIE RE 3 Rt @t
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Thx TEL TEL TAT TAT TAT
CoST KA
At | January 2008 RZEENE-A-H 12032 335 16,173 761 50028 79329
Exchange realignment I 5 8% 732 120 1,081 28 3,080 5041
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-BHRBAR
(note 36) (B ££36) — — 757 — 739 | 496
Additions RE 3,895 8,592 2753 2487 2346] 41188
Disposals it & - — (4300) — 2) (4302)
Reclassified as investment ENPEARENE
properties (note 16) (K 16) (1,940) = = — — (1,940)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENELZAZ+-0B 14719 9,047 16,464 3276 77,306 120812
Additions RE 849 11,045 900 18 7900 20712
Disposals & — — (494) — (386) (880)
At 31 December 2009 RIZBNEFZAZT-B 1558 20092 16,870 3,294 84820 140,644
DEPRECIATION ik
At | January 2008 RZEENE-A—H 2732 = 10,150 175 16,202 29259
Fxchange realignment AR 185 — 677 — 953 1,815
Provided for the year ENEE 698 — 2375 219 7720 11012
Eliminated on disposals It B 38 — — (3670) — — (3,670)
Reclassified as investment BNNBARENE
properties (note 16) (K3t 16) (141) = = = = (141)
At 3| December 2008 RIBENET-AZ+-H 3474 — 9532 394 24875 38275
Provided for the year ERgE | 468 — 1,726 605 9842 13641
Eliminated on disposals & B 3 — — 1) - (40) (261)
At 31 December 2009 RIZENETZAZT-H 4 — 11037 999 34677 51655
CARRYING VALUES RER
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAETZAZ+-H 10,626 20,092 5,833 2,295 50,143 88,989
At 31 December 2008 RIEENFTZAZ+-8 114 9047 6932 2882 5431 82537
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e Y Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

| GEME A
GEUHRRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9% - BER:RE &

(Continued)
After considering the estimated residual values, the above items of RERMTEE  LAWE  BERH
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress HBEE (ERIRRKRIN DURERERT
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per FIE R RIFTE :
annum:
Buildings 20 - 50 years or over the lease term of the relevant land, whichever is shorter
By 20E50F B L HMNEEHR UAREE RE)
Motor vehicles 20%
e 20%
Leasehold improvements 4% or over the term of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter
MEMERE 4% EHEBERR UBREERE)
Machinery, furniture, fixtures
and equipment 10% - 20%

#ees  RXEh HEREZE 10%ZE20%

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16.18 &%
HK$'000
FET
coSsT B
At | January 2008 R-_ZEENF—-H—H —
Reclassified from property, plant BYE BERZRBENHE (MF15)
and equipment (note 15) 1,940
At 31 December 2008 and 2009 R-ZEZENFR-_ZZAFT-A=1+—H 1,940
DEPRECIATION neE
At | January 2008 RZZEZENF—-H—H —
Reclassified from property, plant BYE  BERRBEEHNHE 15
and equipment (note 15) 141
Provided for the year FREE 29
At 31 December 2008 R-ZBENF+-_A=+—H 170
Provided for the year FREE 39
At 31 December 2009 R-_FENFT-_H=1T—H 209
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+T-A=1+—-H 1,731
At 31 December 2008 R-_FENF+-_H=1—H 1,770




A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties (including the
corresponding leasehold land interests with a carrying amount of
HK$3,185,000) at 31 December 2009 was HK$9,180,000 (2008:
HK$9,700,000) and whose addresses are Unit | on |6th Floor and
car parking space no.358 on 3rd Floor of “| 18 Connaught Road
West”, No.| |8 Connaught Road West, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong. The
fair value as at 31 December 2009 has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
independent professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
valuation was determined by reference to recent market prices for

similar properties in the same location and conditions.

The above investment properties are erected on land held under
long leases in Hong Kong and are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over approximately 46 years.

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

16. 515 8M%E »

R-ZETNE+-_A=+—H K£EH
HEW*E (BIEKREEAS,185,000% T
MEBEAELHER) NARER
9,180,000 7C (ZZZ )\ : 9,700,000
BIT) o RYENMI ABBTLR T H
B8R THEAI8H] 16 1ER3
B3 EN - —TTAFF+-_A=F
—BOARENERAREE Y EHE
BB EEMEMAGETAZEMBRA
AMGBESE - HED2EHE RAKR
R ZEUMENTEATEEE ©

TRRENEORRRERPEEES
BRAENLIH L WIREREENLL6
FRFE -

17.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 B FHERIE
2009 2008
—EZEEZAE —ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
The prepaid lease payments comprise B ERBERFEEE L1
leasehold land
— in Hong Kong held —-REERKAMNERHA
under long leases 3,185 3,256
— in the PRC held under —-RPEETHEERA
medium-term leases 94,804 98,193
97,989 101,449
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RHREENINAE
Current asset MENEE 3,460 3,460
Non-current asset ERBEE 94,529 97,989
97,989 101,449
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GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

I8.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT 18. 12 Bk = ’ATE’J’I‘Eﬁ/FEII&

DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE BtEATIRIE
2009 2008
—EEhE —ZTE)N\FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investment in an REEE RBIMIEEMBEERA
associate (note) (Bt 7E) 87,130 53,519
Share of post-acquisition reserves, KB EGEE  MBREKRE
net of dividends received 9,983 13,527
97,113 67,046
Note: Included in the cost of unlisted investment in an associate at the end MisE: RIBEHHELERE  REE2RMNE
of the reporting period is goodwill arising on acquisition of FTREXNABEUBEENEE
HK$9,237,000 (2008: HK$9,237,000). 9,237,000 T (Z T T N\ &
9,237,000/ 7T) °
Details of the Group's associate are set out in note 43. AEBEE RN BHRME43 -
The amount due from an associate was unsecured, non-interest U E AR RERERE 28 RE

bearing and fully recovered during the current year. E’\\\$¢E£§M§Z@ °



A Y

g

I8.INTEREST

IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT

DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associate is set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

18. R B E A TR T

BHEATRIE )

ASEBENRNMHERTALT

2009 2008

ZE2ENF —ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Total assets BERAE 199,120 139,505

Total liabilities BEHER (3,838) (11,040)

Net assets BEFE 195,282 128,465
The Group's share of net assets AEBEOBERRNEEFE

of an associate 87,876 57,809

Revenue Wz 33,315 36,348

Profit for the year F AWk A 4,313 5,897
The Group's share of result of an AEBEERGHBERRANFENER

associate for the year 1,941 2,654

19.INVENTORIES 19.58

2009 2008

—BREAE —FFNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Raw materials R s 455,304 215,675

Finished goods IR m 272,234 41,861

727,538 257,536
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e

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of the Group's trade

receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

20.E5REMBKRERZESE

AKE-RAEZFEFREN FIOEE
B MFHEEH - KR E HRE A RE
AKBERUEZFBANKEIN (HER

reporting period, is as follows:

HEIZ5) T

2009 2008
ZBEAE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Trade receivables: B E 5HE
0 - 30 days 0230H 803,486 425213
31 - 60 days 31260H 678,539 316,600
61 - 90 days 61£290H 513,299 27,002
91 - 120 days 91&2120H 199,040 3,185
[21 - 180 days 1212180H 80,826 —
Over 180 days 1804 26,382 256
2,301,572 772,256
Other receivables and deposits: Hh R RERES -
Deposits and prepayments BEe REMR 31,297 18,099
Deposits paid for purchase REERMEENARE
of raw materials 94,037 39,601
Other taxes recoverable H b 0] U B 71 78 95,643 5,070
Others HAth 1,776 547
222,753 63,317
2,524,325 835,573




A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS (Continued)

The above trade and other receivables of the Group that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of

the relevant group entities are set out below:

As at 31 December 2009

m—§§n¢+‘ﬁ=+—a
As at 31 December 2008 RZEZENF+_A=+—H

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

20.2 S R H fth FE W SR IR R 4%

455 )
ﬁ (%)

LRNEBREBEERDETHEIIES
BE

AENAE B At e W R IR
T
HKD equivalent of
BTN EE
usD RMB
ETT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
— 88,651
30,187 13,533

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributable to customers are reviewed

regularly.

No impairment loss is provided for the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired because these receivables are within
credit period granted to the respective customer and the
management considers the default rate is low for such receivables

based on historical information and past experience.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period. In view of the good settlement history and substantial
subsequent settlement from those debtors of the Group which are
past due but not impaired, the directors consider that no allowance

is required.

REREMHRS 20 FRERFE

BEZFMEREERATERFNE
RRE - LEERT AR ORER
75

BEFSERABHATERENELE SR
RIELREBERRE  DTRARZFEK
NEBRHETPERNEERH LA &
EEEENBEEMRBEERAR
ZERYTENBREZER

REETERKEZFRESAKEE X
SEEEBMBRHEERBEERSE
HRERELIEKEZFREMNEEE
ZENEY R AKEEBAHC AN
ERBENEKRESKAERIFERT
i PEHREEEXRFIEE  HEZF
REBAELRE
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

20B S5 R H i FEWRIE R ¥
25

EBHE R R EN K E 2R IEHNRE

impaired
2009 2008
—B2EhF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
31 - 60 days 31260H 678,539 316,600
61 - 90 days 61£90H 513,299 27,002
91 - 120 days 912120H 199,040 3,185
121 - 180 days 1212 180H 80,826 —
Over 180 days 881804 26,382 256
1,498,086 347,043

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.

AEEYER LR ERFEEMER

O
aA °



'

21.

Y

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The amount represents bills on hand and bills discounted to banks
with recourse with a maturity period of less than 180 days. At the
end of the reporting period, these receivables are not yet due and
the management considers the default rate is low based on past
experience as the Group seldom encounters default on bills. The
Group retains all the risks and rewards of discounted bills receivable
and accordingly, the Group continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of such bills receivable (see note 37 for assets pledged) and
has recognised the cash received on such discount as secured

discounted bills liabilities in note 28.

22.AMOUNT DUE FROM A CONTROLLING

23.

SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2008, the receivable arose from temporary fund
transfers which were non-trade in nature. The amount was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and fully recovered during the
current year. The outstanding balance as at 3|1 December 2008 was

also the maximum amount outstanding during the current year.

DEPOSIT PAID TO A RELATED PARTY

The amount represents a rental deposit paid to secure the lease
agreement entered into between the Group and a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chun, a director of the Company, as the landlord.

Details of the lease agreement are set out in note 42.

21.

22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

L

ZHFAETBER1B0A AT BN FERE
RRTMAERENCHRARE - %%
SR TR Y e 5 D A SR B i R B R
ARAEEBEEVEXERERMAR
BR BEEERRHREER - A&
BREMBEZSCHREBREENZH
R RkEH - B AEEEERRZ
FRUEERNRELHREE(BEAE
ERKEST)  URZEMHRAERTHE
RBRMTMAFERBERTEALS -

& Wy — i %2 fiz B 3R R 1E

RZZZNF+RA=+—H %EK
REDAGRESCER (BFESIEE)
MEL - ZRBR/EEF  2ERER
AEE2EWE - R-ZENF+ A
ST -HORBRERTRAEAFENR

BAEERE

XFF—BEEATHERSE

ZHRADNERERAEBERDARES
REEZEBRANAE (FREE)ZH
AUMBERENXANEERS - H
EmEFRERM 42
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GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 TSI R
Derivatives settled in net (not under hedge accounting): VHBRHPEHERENRFELEEN
TETH :
2009 2008
—EENF “EENF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE BfE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$:000 HK$000
FERT TER TR TR

Future contracts on non-ferrous BEEeE

metals (note a) HE&4 (Mita) 36,508 61,248 446 127
Foreign currency forward SN 3 A
contracts (note b) & # (M 5Tb) 432 843 = =
Interest rate swap (note c) M =42 8 (M sEc) - 53 — —
36,940 62,144 [,446 127
Notes: B aE
(2) Major terms of future contracts on non-ferrous metals are set out A EESBHEANIEZGERMAT
below:
At 31 December 2009 R-BBAF+=A=+—-H
Contracted future price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity
RHHEER BERZEMN BmEM A
Copper future contracts: HHREEH
Sell at prices ranged from 5 tonnes 108 Ranged from
RMB53,980 to RMB58,870 B I5 January 2010 to
per tonne I5 April 2010
BT EmEARKS53,980TE B-Z-TF—-H+AA
AR#58,8707T 5 E-F-TENA+TRA
Buy at prices ranged from 5 tonnes 375 Ranged from
RMB53,400 to RMB59,600 I I5 January 2010
per tonne to |5 March 2010
BN F B8 ARKL3400TE B-FT-—ZFF—-A+thHE

AR #59,6007T 8 A E_Z-TF=A+HA
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A PN

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24.{T4 £ TH »

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) BaE : (&)

(a) Major terms of future contracts on non-ferrous metals are set out a) FELBHEANTEGRNOT @ (&)

below: (Continued)

Contracted future price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity
ERHEER BEXZEMN BEN A
Sell at prices ranged from 25 tonnes 443 Ranged from
USD6,209 to USD7,331 2508 5 January 2010 to
per tonne 30 March 2010
BN T B0E6,209% 7T BE-Z—Z4—HAAA
E733NXTTEH E-T-ZFF=ZA=1H
Buy at prices ranged from 25 tonnes 275 Ranged from
USD5,880 to USD7,377 2508 5 January 2010
per tonne to 31 March 2010
B ¥ 8HE5,8805% T BE-Z-TF—-HEA
E7377XTEA ET-THE=-A=+—H
Sell at prices ranged from 25,000 pounds 102 10 March 2010
USD3.299 to USD3.313 25,0004 —E-FF=A+H
per pound
BN FEHE3.299% T
E331BXTLAEH
Aluminium future contracts: EHEEH
Sell at prices ranged from 5 tonnes 288 Ranged from
RMB15,845 to RMB 17,035 B |5 February 2010
per tonne to 15 April 2010
BN T AR 15,8457 A-F-TF_A+AA
EARM17,035700 i E_Z-TFMA+AA
Buy at prices ranged from 5 tonnes 285 Ranged from
RMBI5,630 to RMBI6,830 I I5 January 2010
per tonne to |5 March 2010
BN T EmARK15630T BE-F-TF—-HA+AA
EARM¥16,830TEA E_Z-TF=-FAt+AA
Sell at USD2,130 per tonne 25 tonnes |4 2 March 2010
REME2,1305% 7Tk 2501 “¥-FH=AZH
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24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

INSTRUMENTS

(a) Major terms of future contracts on non-ferrous metals are set out

below: (Continued)

Contracted future price

EHHEER
Zine future contracts:

Sell at prices ranged from
RMBI6,710 to RMB20,770
per tonne

BN FE8MARK16,7107T
EARM20,770700%

Contracted future price

BRHMEER

Copper future contracts:

Sell at RMB24,267 per tonne
REME AR 24,2677T 8 H

Sell at USD1.85 per pound
RE#1.855% T H

Sell at prices ranged from
USD3,130 to USD4,240 per
tonne

BN FEWE3,130XTTE
4,240% JU 4 i

Standard trading unit
BERZEN

BHREAEH

5 tonnes
BE

Standard trading unit
BERZEN

HHEAEH

25,000 pounds
25,0008

25 tonnes
250

Total unit
B

776

Unit bought
CREEQ

65

The future contracts are measured at fair values based on the quoted

prices in active markets at the end of the reporting period, with gain or

loss recognised directly in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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24.TEERT R o

Pt : (&)

FEeBHEANTIRZGRAT @ (8)

Maturity
A

Ranged from
|5 January 2010

to I5 April 2010
B-Z—Z5—A+HA
E-T-TENA+EHA

At 31 December 2008
RZBEZENF+ZA=1T—H

Maturity
WA

I'5 January 2009
—ZENAF-A+HHE

27 March 2009
—ETAF=F_-1++tH

Ranged from
4 February 2009
to 16 March 2009
B-ZETAF_AMWA
E-_TTNF=ATAXH

RBREHEERE - BEANORE
*&%E’%m%iﬁ%ﬁ/{L/M iAE
HEFEERGA2EKRARARE

—7J
m °
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24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

INSTRUMENTS

(b) Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts as at 3|

December 2009 are as follows:

Notional amount

EREH

[4 contracts to buy

USD28,080,952 in total
14 aha A

(=MPAN

B A28,080,952% 7T

Forward contracted rates

BHEHOR=E

USDI: RMB6.6410 to 6.8442

1EZTTHAREG6.64107T
= ANR¥6.84427C

No foreign currency forward contract was outstanding as at 31

December 2008.

Major terms of the interest rate swap as at 3|1 December 2009 are as

follows:

Notional amount

EEREH

USD 1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

Interest rate swap

FEREH

From London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
to 1.4%
BRBRITAZERE
(MR RITAERFE]) £1.4%

No interest rate swap was outstanding as at 31 December 2008.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

24T ERMTI R »

FiisE : (&)

(b)

(c)

RoEBAFTZAST—A SR
MANETERRIT :

Maturity
EJE N

From 27 September 2010
to 28 December 2010
A-F-TFAA-tLA
ZE-F-EF+-A=+/\H

RZZBEZENE+ZRA=+—H UEH
REBOIEEREH -

RZZEZAF+T-A=+—8 HxE
MO BHERMAT

Maturity

A

27 September 2010
—E-ZFAA=-TLR

R-ZEZNFE+-_A=1+—H L&Y
REERF RIFH -
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25.

e Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The above derivative financial instruments of the Group that are

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

24.TEERT R o

FRAEESEER SR AINIEE
B

denominated in the currencies other than functional currencies of AEMNAERTESHTIANT .
the relevant group entities are set out below:
Assets Liabilities
HKD HKD
equivalent equivalent
of USD of USD
BE afE
BLTHNEEET BINEEER
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZBEANF+ZA=Z+—H 413 (784)
As at 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H — —
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 5.2 EHRITHER

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the
general banking facilities granted to the Group or as customs
security. All deposits are pledged to secure short-term facilities and

therefore, classified as current assets.

The above pledged bank deposits of the Group that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of

the relevant group entities are set out below.

As at 31 December 2009 J?Q_ggﬂff—'f—ﬁ:'f—

As at 31 December 2008 RZBEZENF+_A=1+—

BERROTEFERAKEER KRR
TREFIEATPERMARITERM
TR o BT 7R3 fE 40 DA JE BUE A e
BBl ORBERRPEE -

b AR 9 B 0 B M A S 9
HENAEEEERRGERMT -

HKD

i v
HK$°000
FET

H 10,690
=] _

The pledged bank deposits of the Group carry interest at the

following fixed interest rates:

Range of interest rates per annum

FRIREE

AEECERRITHEREATEENE
‘E-‘—/%\:

2009 2008
= —TTNF

0.01% to 2.25% 1.8% to 4.14%
0.01% £ 2.25% 1.8% £ 4.14%




A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

26.BANK BALANCES AND CASH/RESTRICTED

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-

term bank deposits with maturity of three months or less.

Restricted bank deposits represent deposits placed with financial
institutions to secure the margin accounts of the Group for trading

future contracts in the relevant financial institutions.

The above bank balances and cash and restricted bank deposits of
the Group that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

below:

As at 31 December 2009

m—§§n¢+‘ﬁ=+—a
As at 31 December 2008 RZEZENF+_A=+—H

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

26 R1THB RIS SR

RITHER

FALBRALBESLERANRS
RAZEAREEARRE BN EEE
Gt &

XBRHERTEFXEEFINEREBENT
P UALREERNAHECREBERY
EENNRESP ORRHEER -

TRANEREEERDEERAIIEE
AENAEERTERIRASUARRR
BRITERAT

HKD

equivalent of

uUsD
BAINEE HKD
E BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
22,044 39,093
13,417 663

The bank deposits of the Group carry floating rate interest at the

following rates:

Range of interest rates per annum

FHEEHE

AEBRNRITFRELNTZHH X5
=

2009 2008
ZREAE —TENF

0.01% to 2.25% 0.01% to 4.8%
0.01% & 2.25% 001% & 4.8%

Eiﬁl Annual Report 2009 @
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For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE
27.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.E S R EH b FEMFRIE

REEHREERE - AEBENE S
BHRE ST (RERAH27)MT :

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, presented based on

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

2009 2008
—2ZhF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET

Trade payables: N8 HHE
0 - 30 days 0230H 585,871 12,425
31 - 60 days 31260H 191,996 5,729
61 - 90 days 61290H 111,288 1,122
91 - 120 days 91£120H 32 520
121 - 150 days 1212 150H 44 —
Over 150 days #EiE150H 708 195
889,939 19,991

Other payables: B fth & A FUE
Accruals st & F 12,916 7,008

Payables for acquisition of BEVE BER

property, plant and equipment B0l AN 1,659 2,830
Deposits received from customers BEREFPERS 60,426 15,829
Other taxes payable H fth & 5 B 8 4,409 4224
Others Hity 12,447 2,448
91,857 32,339
981,796 52,330
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A _J N T

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

27.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) ESRHEMEMRE @
The average credit period on purchase of goods is up to 60 days. f%?ﬂ:ﬁﬁm:Fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁoa NS
The Group closely monitors its cash flows position to ensure that all BEEENBARSRE  BRRAERE
payables are settled within credit time frame. fif /TAIEEAE EHRABE -
The above trade and other payables that are denominated in a FPRAFRHEEERNEEEUIER
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group AENESREMEMNTIENT

entities are set out below:

HKD
equivalent of
UsD
BITHNEEET
HK$°000
FET
As at 31 December 2009 %_ggﬁ,ﬂiﬂ'_ﬁl:ﬂ'—ﬁ 1,404
As at 31 December 2008 R_TEFNF+=-_A=1+—H 404
28.DISCOUNTED BILLS 28 BHIRE 4
The amounts represent the Group's bank borrowings secured by BREBEDIEREE AR BRITRARM B
bills discounted to banks with recourse (see note 21). The ranges of REZBREERORTER(RMTE
effective interest rates per annum in respect of the Group's 21) - AKERBAERENUREENE
discounted bills with recourse are as follows: REMXBEMT -
2009 2008
—BENF —EENF
Effective interest rates per annum 1.74% to 5.83%  3.85% to 6.04%
BERFNE 1.74% Z 5.83% 3.85% £ 6.04%
29.AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY 29.FEfHH B AT L BBRER
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES I8
The payables arose from temporary fund transfers, which were non- ZERNFADAGRECEE (BHFE
trade in nature. The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing SUE)MEE - REHFBAEER £
and fully settled during the current year. ERERAEERZHAETS -

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 @
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GEaMBHRRME

e

30.AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR

31

The payable arose from temporary fund transfers, which were non-

trade in nature. The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and

fully settled during the current year.

.BANK BORROWINGS

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

30.fEft EERIE

ZERNFENEGRRECEE (BIFES
HE)MEL - ZFBAEER 28R

ERAEE2HEE

31ERITHR

2009 2008
—EBNE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Fixed-rate borrowings: ERBER :
Bank loans RITE R 392,734 59,802
Variable-rate borrowings: FEMER
Bank loans RITER 22,727 76,437
Bank overdrafts RITEX — 3,334
Trust receipt loans ERRBEER 36,115 —
451,576 139,573
Secured =R 257,342 139,573
Unsecured mHA 194,234 —
451,576 139,573
The maturity of the above loans and ~ EilE R KRBT
overdrafts is as follows: HEBBERNT
On demand or within one year REKKEX—FA 451,576 128,664
In more than one year but not more ~ —F & BT BB W F
than two years — 10,909
451,576 139,573
Less: Amount repayable on demand B RBREEENL
or due within one year shown R —F R B I
under current liabilities IIARBEENSHE (451,576) (128,664)
Amount due after one year —FRIHNEHE - 10,909




= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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., / GEUBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

31.BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) S1RITEM @)
The Group's variable-rate borrowings are mainly subject to interest AEENIRERTERETEAMAR
at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or LIBOR plus a spread, TREFEMNF09%E3I% (ZTEN
ranging from 0.9% to 3% (2008: 1.75% to 3%), Prime Rate of the FI175%E3%) NEE - FEMAMER
relevant bank in Hong Kong or such rate plus a spread of 1% or THEEFESIHBEARBITEERER
105% or 110% of The People's Bank of China Base Lending Rate. The FZEE1%5105%3k110%5T 8 - K&EH
ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's bank RITEFNERENXBENT

borrowings are as follows:

2009 2008
—EBNE —TTNF

Effective interest rates: BN =
Fixed-rate borrowings EREN 1.36% to 5.84%  3.77% to 7.84%
Variable-rate borrowings EEER 0.38% to 5.58%  2.73% to 6.74%

‘mﬂ}

The above Group's bank borrowings that are denominated in FRAETBAERER TR UINE
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group FENAEERITERAT

entities are set out below:

HKD
equivalent of

usD HKD

BIRNEEETR BT

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

As at 31 December 2009 %—§§n$+—ﬁ=+—a 162,558 21,917

As at 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+ZA=+—H 38,220 14,110

FH | Annual Report 2009 @
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32.SECURED GUARANTEED SENIOR NOTES

On 23 October 2007 (the “Issue Date”), the Group issued
US$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$624,000,000) 8.5%
guaranteed senior notes to a group of institutional investors not
related to the Group at a par value of US$500,000 each (the “Senior
Notes"). The Senior Notes bear coupon interest at 8.5% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears and are denominated in USD. The
Senior Notes are secured by substantially all the assets of the Group
outside of the PRC and the entire issued shares of the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. The Senior Notes are also
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company. Under the
indenture governing the Senior Notes (“Indenture”), the Group is
mandatorily required to redeem the Senior Notes in cash on 23
October 2009, being the maturity date of the Senior Notes, or upon
the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing"), whichever is earlier. The above pledges and guarantees
would also be released upon Listing. The redemption is at the Senior
Notes redemption price amounting to 100% of the principal
outstanding amount of the Senior Notes as of the date fixed for
redemption, together with accrued interest to the next interest

payment date.

In connection with the issuance of the Senior Notes, the Group also
issued one warrant per Senior Note totalling 160 warrants
("Warrants") to the holders of the Senior Notes. The Warrants
entitled the holders to put the Warrants to the Group at the agreed
Warrants redemption price (see the table set out below) upon (i) a
primary public offering of the listing of shares of the Company on an
internationally recognised stock exchange acceptable to the holders
of the Senior Notes, which included the Stock Exchange (the
“Qualified IPO"); (ii) if Listing shall not occur on or before the date
that is 24 months after the Issue Date; or (iii) if any event of default
as detailed in the Indenture shall occur under the Senior Notes (such
date that is the earlier to occurrence of (i) and (ii)) (hereinafter (i)

to (iii) are referred to as “Warrants Redemption Date").

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

REFFRREARRE

RZEZLF+AZT=H([ETH
1) ﬁ%rﬁ—%ﬁtéﬁm%liﬂfm
H M 18 1% 4 % %£9780,000,0003 7T (8 E
R #7624,000,0007% 7T) 8.5% A &R B %
ZER(BXER]) - §HHEMEA500,000
ELcBEEBNEFEEEXAE85% -
BARBEFIHELMN  LUETT
B BERBEUREERF BRI R
ABPEENRARAREETHEBAR
AEHBEBITRMDERRE - AAAET
MEBRRMABEEBRREER - BRE
fﬁﬁ%ﬁs@i—@ﬂ@(@ﬂm) F REE
ZhE+A=Z+=A(AELE
)&$ Wﬂ’ﬁMﬁ%xﬁﬁim
J)Hﬂ%?%%%ﬁwﬁﬁ
5 Lxﬂfiﬁ&if’%%)ﬂﬁﬁim
BAEESRESNETER
f E%T%ﬁ HRENASHERE
T—EFEX N BPREFFENELE
BECERER -

~

P
18 nﬂ}i

¥
ﬁ
3 8 3t m\l

B
b

IR
=y
-+

@4

m
&

B R

pii

RENREZRE KAEENERENHE
AEBET—ORREZTEEME LS
BB ABTE £160/0 BRESE (IR
BEE]) RREFETHEA  ROE
ARNDEEBLEZBEFBEAZEMNNEERER
AEAFZ S (BEHRA) LR ER
AAEBEE([6ERBERRRAEE] (i)
MAERETHHRER24EAEASKZ
Al LT Slii)im AR EZBRENME
MENEN GHRRARRLD) ZAENE
EREEMEFREZEELRE) (()
Z(i)ETXBEIRREZBERBH])
B RBHEHRBREZERER (BT
R)RAAREELEHRREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE
32.SECURED GUARANTEED SENIOR NOTES
(Continued)

REBPFRRBERR @

RERBEEEFEANEE  RRE
FARTIAIARGERERARAEE
TERERETAHRR24EAARN QRS
HEROESEE

At the discretion of each holder of the Warrants, the Warrants may
be either (a) cash settled or (b) equity settled, during the 24 months

after the Issue Date upon the Qualified IPO in the following manner:

(a) Cash settled of Warrants (a) MBESEHTIRES

NS @‘E?%B%EAT@JEE@EE’UE

The Group shall redeem the Warrants for a price equal to the

redemption price as follows:

Woarrants Redemption date

wRERELD B S

On or before the date that is 6 months

after the Issue Date

RETHHEWAEAEBRZH

After the date that is 6 months after the
Issue Date but on or before the date
that is |2 months after the Issue Date

RETRBRBMAEAEBRE
RETEBREB T EAERXZA

After the date that is 12 months after
the Issue Date but on or before the
date that is 18 months after
the Issue Date
RETERERT_EAZR®ZE
RETEBEHTEAE XA

After the date that is 18 months
after the Issue Date but on or before
the date that is 24 months after the Issue Date
RETRBERTN\EAZER®RE
RETHBRRB-THEERE B ZH

On the date that is 24 months

after the Issue Date

RETEHEM-TMNEAEHA

e g R

Warrants Redemption price

wREE RO ES

Number of Warrants x USD500,000 x
4 25%
R FEEE x 500,000 T X 4.25%

Number of Warrants x USD500,000 x
8.86%

AN REEEE X 500,000 7T X 8.86%

Number of Warrants x USD500,000 x
15.57%

AN REEEE X 500,000 7T X 15.57%

Number of Warrants x USD500,000 x
21.72%

AR EFEH B X 500,000%E T X 21.72%

Number of Warrants x USD500,000 x
[9.28%
R EEE B x 500,000 7T X 19.28%
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32.SECURED GUARANTEED SENIOR NOTES

(Continued)
(b) Equity settled of Warrants

Within the 24 months after the Issue Date, holders of the
Warrants are entitled to receive shares of the Company in lieu
of cash for the above mentioned amounts calculated with

reference to the offer price under the Qualified IPO.

The Senior Notes are accounted for as financial liabilities which are

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the redemption
feature of the Warrants represents additional borrowing cost of the
Senior Notes, which will be incurred through with the passage of
time. As a result, it is taken into account in the calculation of effective
interest of the Senior Notes. In addition, the directors of the
Company consider that the value of the conversion options adhered
to the Warrants is insignificant at the date of issue, at the end of the

reporting period and at the date of redemption.

Upon Listing on 22 June 2009, the Group redeemed the Senior
Notes together with accrued interest to the next interest payment
date and settled the Warrants by cash at the Warrants redemption
price as set out above. The pledges and guarantees in relation to the
issuance of the Senior Notes were also released during the year

following the redemption.

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

NEFFERRELAER @

(b) NHEREERRMHER

RETERE_THEAR - B
BERAANBRERADR RN A
REZREERERAREENE
EEENLEEERE -

BERBIERABERMN KRB HK
AR ERMALE

ARAEERA  AREZNE DS
TRREEENEENSELNEER
BBEIIMEERA - Bt - ARFHERE
FENERMEETIAZE « ftoh - &
AFEE R RIBEE M R ER
BTRH REHEERKRLEDAH
MEELTERX -

RZZETAFAA-+-ALHHE ' K
SEBENELRE(ERAET—EMER
FEEAE) - Wik EXAER R EEER
BARBERARESE - EHEETER
EENERRERTCNEOEREE
ERR o
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

32.SECURED GUARANTEED SENIOR NOTES 32 FREELXERE »

(Continued)
The movements of the Senior Notes of the Group are as follows: AEERAEZSENESHNOT

HK$000

FET

At | January 2008 RZZEZENF—-HA—H 624,718
Interest charge HMEEH 125,046
Interest paid B E (53,040)
At 31 December 2008 R_FFNF+-_A=1+—H 696,724
Interest charge MEEA 11,001
Interest paid ERFE (26,520)
Redemption upon Listing R ETEED (781,215)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZFAF+-A=t—H -
The effective interest rate applied is 19.36% per annum. PrER A BB FME319.36% °
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For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

33.DEFERRED TAXATION 33RIEHI I
The deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and AEERFARANELERBEERE
movements thereon during the year are as follows: EREZEHMT :

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
I BRI E REEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At | January 2008 R-_ZEZN\F-HA—H 577 — 577
Charged (credited) for the year ANEE TR (HR) 366 (910) (544)
Effect of change in tax rate HEEHTE (33) — (33)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZNEFE
+=-A=+—H 910 (910) —
(Credited) charged for the year F R (%) 5T (224) 224 —
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZERF
+=-ZB=+—H 686 (686) —_
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33.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$74,367,000 (2008: HK$40,661,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$4,157,000 (2008: HK$5,516,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$28,078,000 (2008:
HK$29,200,000) that will expire in various dates up to 2014. Other

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the tax rules and regulations in the PRC, 10% withholding
income tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned from | January 2008 to non-PRC resident investors of the
companies established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in
Hong Kong, a preferential rate of 5% will be applied. Deferred tax
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the temporary differences attributable to such
undistributed profits from PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$109,482,000 (2008: HK$85,814,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

EBEBIE &)

RZEZNE+ZA=+—H  £5H
] PR fEHE 40 R 2R 35 ) 69 w0 K B A B TR U8
18 5 74,367,0008 L (ZZ T N\ F -
40,661,000 ;) * R EEBEE R L
4,157,000% T (ZFZF \F : 5,516,000
BID) BRELEREEE - AR KL
AEBFTR - R EREBOHIES
ERRAECEHEEE - RERNHES
18 £34%28,078,0008 T (ZTETNF -
29,200,000 7T) WER  KREBEEZZ
—mEILFZEB R - EaEEa
mREGE -

BEFBEBRBSHYRER  RPEKT
MARIEEZZ2ENF— A —HBHRR
HaMmERREREEESIRRER
BEMI0%TEMMER - REBZMK
VHREENATZEBEHELD ° HR
AEEAER TR EENROERAY
BEBERAREREAETERRD - &
VERZEFEHBRRANRD KR F
JEE {5 /) & 5 = %8109,482,0008 T (Z &
Z )\ : 85,814,000/ ) FE LR A BT 15 3R
KPR R R RS o
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&, d GAMERRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

34.0THER LONG-TERM PAYABLE 34. 5 fth R B RE i+ FRIE

2009 2008

“BENF —ZEENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Total other long-term payable Hih RHIENRIBERE 682 909
Less: current portion included in B FAB S REMER

trade and other payables FIB & BN AR B (228) (227)

454 682

The amount represents payable for acquisition of property, plant and ~ ZHX BB BEWE  BE REHEHEMS K
equipment which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable by I8+ EEE - £ 8  BAB-_TT=F#
instalments in ten years commencing from the year 2003. ST FERASHEER -



= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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AN i 4 GEUBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

35.SHARE CAPITAL 35.18 &
Number
of shares Amount
BRH#E k)
HK$
#
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each BRE(E0.00017% LM & AR
Authorised: ETE
At | January 2008 and 31 December 2008 RZZENF-A-HEK 3,800,000,000 380,000
:23)\¢‘|‘ A=+—-H
Increase on 22 May 2009 (note i) “ZENFRAZTZA 6,200,000,000 620,000
i'a‘ 7 (B &Ei)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTEAF+ZA=T—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
lssued and fully paid: BEETRER
At | January 2008 RZZEZENF-H—H 100,000 10
Issue of share on | February 2008 (note ii) RZZEZNF-_A—H
TRt (i) | —
At 31 December 2008 R-ZFEN\F+-A=+—H 100,001 10
Capitalisation issue on 22 June 2009 (note i) RZEENF AZTZAH
B AL BT (H D) 699,899,999 69,990
Issue of shares on 22 June 2009 (note iii) RZEEANF AZTZAH
B340 (Y aEiii) 300,000,000 30,000
Issue of shares on 26 June 2009 (note iv) RZEENFA
—HRBETRD (M) 45,000,000 4,500
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZ2EAF+ZA=t-8  1,045,000,000 104,500
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35.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

HK$°000
FET
Shown in the consolidated financial statements RERE I EBRRAINNR A
As at 3| December 2009 RZZEZNF+=_A=+—H 105
As at 3| December 2008 RZZEZENF+ZA=1+—H —
Notes: Bt 5
() Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the (i) REARRE—BRER_ZTZNF

(i)

(iv)

Company on 22 May 2009, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to HK$1,000,000. The directors of the
Company were also authorised to capitalise the sum of HK$69,990
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum in paying up in full at par 699,899,999 shares for
allotment and issue to Wellrun Limited, the then sole shareholder of
the Company and a company wholly owned by Mr. Chun. On 22 June
2009, the directors allotted and issued such shares as aforesaid and

gave effect to the capitalisation issue.

On | February 2008, | ordinary share of HK$0.000| was allotted and
issued to the then existing shareholder for a consideration of

US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$234,000,000).

On 22 June 2009, the Company issued 300,000,000 shares pursuant to
the Company's initial public offering at a price of HK$5.18 per share
upon Listing.

On 26 June 2009, the Company issued 45,000,000 shares pursuant to
the over-allotment option as referred to in the prospectus of the

Company dated 10 June 2009 at a price of HK$5.18 per share.

The new shares allotted and issued rank pari passu in all respects

with other shares in issue.

(ii)

(ifi) 7

(iv)

s
S

FAZ+-—H@EBNEMR
KA ADEE AL I ZE 1,000,000
T RABEZNEREEBE R
AR 7 5 (B AR /O #E AR £ 88169,990
BTREER  FRZECSEEA
ERAAGRIERNE-—RRERRE
E2EBRBENARFERRAD AR
%% T % 17699,899,9990% A B 7 {E 44
Emh@°ﬁ—vzﬂiﬂﬂ +
“H BEEREBERBTLARG
FEERCBETER -

RZZEENF_A—H  URKE
30,000,000 7 ( #H & » 4

234,000,000/ 7T) A & B A A% 5 A
R EITIREE0.0001 8 T H L il

B

= 7%515/\)% —'— EI ZK
m&%&;% REENLEMRES
% % 15 5.184 7T % 17300,000,000%

Betn -

NN

RZZEZAFAAZ+TARB - KA
AREBEARBIZEZNESATH
FI) 8% 7O 18 AR 232 AT AU AR 2B BT AR R 4R
B R A% 7 5.187% 7T % 17 45,000,000
B °

HMEZERBTORMDEME N EREEM
B&TH ARRMA
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For the year ended 3/_December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

36.ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 36.M 5 — B B A B
In December 2007, the Group injected RMBI 1,667,000 (equivalent RZZZ2LE+_R REERRKE
to approximately HK$12,412,000), representing 70% of the enlarged BMBEERERAR ([RRBBFI)
capital, to Zhangjiagang Rongli Zaisheng Ziyuan Co. Ltd. A AR % 11,667,000 (18 & R4
(“Zhangjiagang Rongli") as capital injection. Since the control over 12,412,000 T * {EREREKRE70%)
Zhangjiagang Rongli was successfully achieved on | January 2008, the EREIE -BRNE_ZTENF—-H—R
Group accounted for the acquisition on that date by using the ﬁJZUJEN—%%ﬂE%;%AﬂE’\]E%U% NS
purchase method of accounting, RZBRABEGTHEARLKE -
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: REXZHTWBHOEEFENT :
Acquiree’s

carrying amount
before combination

and fair value

L N
REBtaT
REERAAE
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: P i e & &% 1ME -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 1,496
Inventories FE 2,935
Trade receivables B E 5 IE 63,011
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRES 14,030
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H A &R (53,139)
Amount due to a shareholder e — HX%E)]/‘D}\ (5319)
Taxation payable J& 5 Bt 18 (1,596)
21,418
Minority interests PERRER (9,006)
Total consideration satisfied by capital R=ZTZTtF+= A
injection in December 2007 AETAXNNRERRE 12,412
Cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEENEREER
Bank balances and cash acquired i ERITERRER® 14,030

Zhangjiagang Rongli incurred a loss of HK$2,064,000 for the year ~HEZZTZNF+_A=+—HILFE ' &
ended 31 December 2008. X8 AN & 2,064,000/ 7T ©
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GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

37.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37.EEHKA
The Senior Notes issued by the Group in 2007 as disclosed in note MERARENAERARN _—_TTLFH
32 were secured by the entire issued shares and the assets of the THEARBERARARETHE AR
Company and certain of its subsidiaries. These pledges were released MEBEBTRHREEEER - ZF
during the year following the redemption of the Senior Notes. BERERBERELERERTERER
Save as disclosed above, the Group also had the following assets BREXBEEI  RBSHBMER
pledged to banks to secure the general banking facilities granted to B AEETEHATEEER TR
the Group or as customs security as at end of the reporting period: 7 UERAEEERN —RBTRE
FIEREPER

2009 2008

ZETRE —ZENE

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FHET

Investment properties REME 1,668 1,706
Prepaid lease payments iEAREN -0 2,790 2,853

Bills receivable FEWZ & 185,265 304,60
Bank deposits RITHER 210,376 72,455

400,099 381,615




= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38.OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the year

are as follows:

BAZERHE

Office and factory premises

B.EEHE
AEBEEBEBEA
FRARBELEHEENZEMAEZREN
T
2009 2008
—EThE —TENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
18,891 9,902

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable leases which fall due as follows:

AEBRBENAT BEAZE R0 AT B
MENARRREBREMROAENT

2009 2008

—E2TNE —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$:000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 14,435 21,308
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~E_ZFRF (BEEEMT) 30,732 49,320
Over five years EFENE 68,750 78,395
113,917 149,023

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of fifteen to twenty years and rentals are fixed during the

lease period.

REHENFEASEREETHAE
EBEREMNES KEFRNEEFH
RTAZE- T HEHAEESERE -
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&, d GAMERRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

38.0PERATING LEASES (Continued) BEZEHE @)
The Group as lessor FEEEREBEA
Property rental income earned during the year is as follows: RENFHRBNDEE S KAWT
2009 2008
ZETNE —ZENE
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
Rental income HelA 567 401
As at 31 December 2009, the Group's investment properties have a RZZZANFT_A=1+—0  ~5E
committed tenant for the coming three months (2008: fifteen HREMERBEE=ERA (ZTZTN\F :
months). THER)ERAARER -
The Group had contracted with the tenant for the following future AEBECEBEFIAN  BEKEHEEN
minimum lease payments: E S UNNE
2009 2008
—$EhFE  -TINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FA 118 567
In the second to fifth years inclusive =~ £ _ZFRAF (BEEEMF) —_ I8
118 685




= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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M i 4 GEUBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

39.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39.8 A A& i
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Capital expenditure contracted REIFONERIZ:3i
for but not provided in the A B®RENA
consolidated financial BRENERHAX
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant - WEME  BERRE
and equipment 50,670 32,274
— addition of construction —IIEEREIR
in progress 5,799 3,239
— addition of land use rights —ER AR - 30,180
— acquisition of a subsidiary (note) — W g — R B B & =] (B &) 250,000
306,469 65,693
Note: On 31 December 2009, Jiangsu China Metal Recycling Resources ek AEE2EMBARIHTB4EE
Co, Ltd. (“Jiangsu CMR Resources"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of RERAAIEBYIE=ZFR_FZAN
the Group, has entered into certain agreements with independent F+=ZA= Jr B aI 3 & T 1 3 bA UK
third parties to acquire a 99.68% interest in Jiangsu Jiangyin Port BIKIRBEEREFRAR (NIR
Container Company Limited OL# IRBERHEFR A F) K1) 99.68%Em K HMRMKEE
(“Jiangyin Container”) and related operating assets for an aggregate E #BREARAR220,000000T
consideration of RMB220 million (equivalent to approximately ($H%“73M"]250 000,000/ 7T) ° IR %
HK$250 million). Jiangyin Container is principally engaged in the HMEEXBRAREAEORE  2F
business of the provision of port services, including warehousing, R Eﬁ HBRRARENES - AR P
stevedoring and transportation of goods. The transactions will be BR-ZE-—ZFFRARETK °

completed by the end of June 2010.
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40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

40.LAR B ZHX 5

UEREERRETS

Equity-settled share option schemes

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company on 22 May 2009, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the "Pre-IPO Scheme") was adopted by the Company. Pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Company may grant options to any
full-time or part-time employees or potential employees,
executives, officers or directors of the Company, its subsidiaries
and associated companies (“Eligible Participants”) to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme
is to recognise the contribution that Eligible Participants made
or may have made to the growth of the Group. It aims to give
Eligible Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency, and also to help
attract or retain Eligible Participants whose contributions are
important to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted is 100,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
shares of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
upon Listing, but excluding any shares which may fall to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted or to be
granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme, the other schemes and
shares that may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the over-

allotment option in connection with the Listing.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 60 days
from the date of offer upon payment of HK$I.

(a)

EENGE L - Rl

BREARRAKE-BRR_ZFTNE
TA-T-ARBNEERER -
NGBS RN STl gy
AE(ERARBERME]) - R
BERDHREERN:E  KAARA
mMARE  HWEARREE LA
MEzBARBERIERESR 17
BAR SHRBERER([AER
SEAL)REBBREAZELAR
AR c BRAREERFEEHE
RRABERZ2EALTRAEEMNE
RELOXAEELNER - A&
BR2BALTRBEKBERREEA
BEORE THEBHEDHLEERS
BALRABRENRAREE - I
Rl ZBEHAEEREZRLA
MEBRERMAERZEAL -

FRBRETREMNROEE LR
£5100,000,000/ fx fn + HERER
ARERLETEEETRAEAI0% -
HTNBENERITEREERDRA
BENERE BB ERET
EHBEREMZETNRS - ARA
RETEER LT EERRER
BIIHRNG -

ARARHOBREIBRNIZZ A
HMEANTHRESR  BARKAM
BT °
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40.UBR#®BZHRXS »@)

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued) DESEHEBRESS (8)

(2) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BRARBEENBRESTE ()
Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are BEERAAREEMAERLNE
exercisable at the initial offer price to the public (i.e. HK$5.18 BREAJZRGETARATHEREES
per share). Each of the holders of the share options under the B (B ERKRM5188T) 1k - &
Pre-IPO Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/her options in RARBESRTENBREREA
the following manner: BRBRAT AN TEEBRE

Maximum accumulated

Service period that share options can be percentage of
exercised after the date of Listing share options exercisable
REm BRI EERENRLE S ATERREN
RIBILER

Attaining | year HE1F 33.33%
Attaining 2 years BA2F 66.67%
Attaining 3 years ¥ AIF 100%
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40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the vear, 28,716,216 options were granted to Eligible
Participants under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the total number of
shares that can be issued upon the exercise of all options is
28,716,216 shares, representing approximately 2.75% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 3| December 2009.
The estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant is
HK$59,442,000. Details of the share options granted under the

Pre-IPO Scheme and their subsequent movements are as

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

0.UKEBRZRRES @

NESEEBRRESS (&)

(a)

follows:

Category

of Eligible Exercise

Participants  Date of price Exercisable Vesting

RERSHE grant per share period date

ALES REEA BRAKE TES FEEH

Directors 19 June 2009 HK$5.18 22 June 2010 - 22 June 2010

E% “TENE AT 18June 2017 —E-Ef
ARTNE “E-TEXA-+ZH R~AZTZH

EE—+EXATNH

23 June 2011 - 23 June 2011
18 June 2017 Z—E——F
“E-—§XAZTZR AAZtT=H

—tFRXATNR

23 June 2012 - 23 June 2012
18June 2017 Z—E——F
“E-ZFXAZT=R R~AZTZ=H

ECE2—+&XA1NH

BROFMBEMBRESS (&)

FR 287162160 ERERES
RARBERFERTAEKSH
AT TEITEFTA BB R M AT %
17 KRR 10 48 81 & 28,716,2168% B%
7 HEREARRARZZZAET
ZA=+—BEEITRAEL2.75% -
BREARLBHNGEALIAES
59,442,000 7T ° REBE B XA FH
EHFEREMEREREZZE
FBWT

Outstanding

Options as at
granted 31.12.2009
during Forfeited R-ZZhE
the year during t=A

RERTE the year ET=f
WERE REARK i KA

5,405,404 (1930502) 3474902

5,405,406 (1930502) 3474904

5,405,406 (1930,502) 3474904

16,216,216 (5791,506) 10424710
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40.UBR#®BZHRXS »@)

(Continued)
Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued) DESEHEBRESS (8)
(2) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BRAREBESAIERETE (&)
Outstanding
Options as at
Category granted 31.12.2009
of Eligible Exercise during Forfeited R-ZZNE
Participants  Date of price Exercisable Vesting the year during +=A
RERSH grant per share period date REARH the year Er=[g
ATEH REBH BREE Rid GEEH HERE REARK W RAT B
Employees 19 June 2009 HK$5.18 22 June 2010 - 22 June 2010 4,166,666 - 4,166,666
under “ZTNE En 18June 2017 Z—E—%
continvous N AT AR “E-FFXA-+-H AA-TZH
employment EZZ—tEXAT/\A
contract 23 June 2001 - 23 June 2011 4,166,667 — 4,166,667
BERERE 18June 2017 —F——%
aNEES ‘i——ﬁﬂﬂ T=H AAZtT=H
ZZ-t5/ ATNH
23 June 2012 - 23 June 2012 4,166,667 - 4,166,667
|8June20|7 5%
—Z- NAZ+=A AAZtZ=H
E:g EAH+AH
12,500,000 - 12,500,000

28716216 (5791506) 22924710

Exercisable at
the end

of the year _

EXRATE
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40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

0.UKEBRZRRES @

NESEEBRRESS (&)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(2) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BAAREEANBRETE (8)

BREACAER-_EAAEAGE
ZEAFBABBEAT

The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial

model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Market price ™8 HK$5.187%8 7T
Exercise price THE HK$5. | 878 I
Expected volatility R IE 48.25%
Contractual life & HF H 8 yearsF
Risk-free rate B RN = 1.986%
Expected dividend yield TEHIRR B e NIl

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the stock return of certain comparable listed

companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised on expense of HK$14,842,000 (2008:
Nil) for the year in relation to share options granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme.

Bt RERETHEALR EHAF
Mk EHBEKBERE

HEBBEARERAESRER
REENSEMLHTE - BREE
EREFIBEBINTALSRTA
5 R -

AEERFARBEARRABES
RARBEER RN BRERR
514,842,000 L (ZZTT )\ 4F !
) o

AN
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40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

0.UKEBRZRRES @

NEZEEBRESS (&)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (b) BERx#EEH &l

Also, pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company on 22 May 2009, the Share Option Scheme (the

“Scheme") was also adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers including
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisors (“Eligible
Scheme Participants”) who, in the sole opinion of the board of
directors, will contribute or have contributed to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries. The Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions Eligible Scheme Participants had or may have
made to the Group. The Scheme will provide Eligible Scheme
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to motivating Eligible Scheme
Participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going business relationships with Eligible Scheme
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group. The Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from 22 June 2009, the date of
Listing.

BN BBEADBR-—BRER =T
EAFERA-+t-ERANEER
BRCAQANEANBERES
([&&T&l) »

REZtE - ARABEHAAEMNZ

BaRBER THABRRRABE
B (BEARBAREMANBLRN
Ex ULEZe2ER/KEX

—BEARARAR/REEMNER
AEHERAEMHfER TP
HAER KERER) ([8ERE
B2RAL]) REBIRE - &t 8
rR-ERMDERTE  ARARE
HEBERFEL2BALHAREE
HEAREER BRI R o 35t
BARAREERFE2BALRMA
EARAAREEBARDNEE -
DRI 15 5 R AN S B O ) a5 T B
RAAKRBERME ¥R RBE
RERMEZEALTHRITERE
B B2BATRBFENELE
B MzEEERLEALINE
B DHABEAEENRERR
AN - ZAB B -TTENAF A
TZHLEMEBEF10FAER
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For the year ended 3! December 2009
HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE
40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40.LB#H AR S @)
(Continued)

NESEEBRRESS (&)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) FEEMRHESTE (&)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 0% of shares of the Company as of the
date of the approval by the shareholders in general meeting,
without approval from the Company’s shareholders. The shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Scheme
Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the date of

grant.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of their respective associates is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options). Where granting of options to a substantial shareholder
or any independent non-executive director or their respective
associates which will result in the number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the twelve-month period up to and including
the date of such grant exceed of 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue and have an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5,000,000, based on the official closing price of the shares at
the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options will be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the

approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

7] BE R 17 fE AR 3B & At &I IR B AV AT
ARREMBTNROEE LRA
ATEBERRRBERAGHER
HHARDARMN10% (BAXR AR
RYLE) o ATERTTERIE XA EI R
AR EME T b B AR 4 AT B PTR
B RITERRAERBREDZETH
BN ERBERAGBATEC %
TP H930% » AR+ = {8 A #
HEERHAHAERTEREZ
AT &) R A A E ] H Al fE AR A At &l
mMEBLAERESEALREMN
BRE(BRETERRRITENE
) T 3217 R AS B 1T A0 B 0 MR BT
FHARELBHERTKRON
1% °

AAARESE  FETHRAERE
ZRE(EE2REMARA) K EFS
B & E (B AR AR E
BEBMIERTESR (TREEMS
REREARRANBIIIFNTES)
BoofE o B EERE KB
WTESIRESENEABHEA
REERE S$E3RTZEAH
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e Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A J N

For the year ended 31 December 2009
RE-—ETAG+-A=+—BULEE
40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40.UBR#®BZHRXS »@)
(Continued)

NEZEEBRESS (&)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) RS (&)

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of HK$I.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors and

but in any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a day on
which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of

dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified by
the board of directors to each grantee and such period shall

expire not later than |0 years from the date of grant of options.

During the year, 5,606,406 options were granted to Eligible
Scheme Participants under the Scheme and the total number of
shares that can be issued upon the exercise of all options is
5,606,406 shares, representing approximately 0.54% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2009.
The estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant is
HK$19,316,000.

PR R RN ZE B B30
BRER  ERBAIMIET -

AEEREEERE - EHEHR
EABATFRERTIEENE
5%

i REZFH(ARBIANREE
FRGEBHRF)BRAEA
REXRAEBRDEYRIAOE
W E

(i) BERREAHALMBEE XA
R ERE R B
RFFFHETRTE R

(i) BipHE1E -

IXBEREIREZENE AR
AERTE  MxBEARK L
AR FRER -

F A + 5,606,406 i Ik IR & %A1
ERTRERFELZ2BAL  ME
TEMBERERATZETHORNE
21/35,606,406/% ' HHERANA AR
ZETNF+ZA=T—HE#E
BRAN#90.54% © BERRER L A HIR
st A 7 18 419,316,0008 JT °
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40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted under the Scheme during the year are
exercisable at the price of HK$8.74 per share. Each of the
holders of the share options under the Scheme shall be entitled

to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

Service period that share options can be

exercised after | November 2009

R-ZBAE+-A—-B#%

ATEBRENREHE

Attaining | year HE1F
Attaining 2 years RHHE2F
Attaining 3 years FHA3F

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

0.UKEBRZRRES @

NESEEBRRESS (&)

(b) FERxHER &l ()

FARBZTERINBRERE
8. 74 TR ERITMRE © %At B
BREESHAEABERIATHATE
HEBRE -

Maximum accumulated
percentage of

share options exercisable
AT RN
RIFEIHLER

33.33%
66.67%
100%
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BE-—EENFL-A=1+—HItEE

40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40.UBR#®BZHRXS »@)

(Continued)
Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued) DESEHEBRESS (8)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) RS (&)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme, all of BEZAEREMN _-_ZTNF T+
which remained outstanding as at 3| December 2009, are as ZA=T-BMARTENBREF
follows: BT :
Options
granted
during the
year and
outstanding
as at
Category 31.12.2009
of Eligible RERER LM
Scheme Exercise R=ZBENE
Participants Date of price Exercisable Vesting T=A=+—H
cERSH grant pershare period date e R AT
AT ER REBEH SBRiTEE TS HFEAH NiERE
Employees under 24 December HK$8.74 | November 2010 - | November 2010 1,868,802
continuous 2009 7T 23 December 2017 —E-TF
employment —TTNF e i = T—H—H
contract +=AR —“E—+&+_-_RF-+=H
EEER ~+mA | November 2011 - | November 20| 1,868,802
AHNEE 23 December 2017 —E——F
—E-——%t+—-H—-HE tT—HA—H
—E—tFt-A=t=H
| November 2012 - | November 2012 1,868,802
23 December 2017 —E-_F
—E-_Ft+—-H—-HE t—H—H
—E—tFt-A=t=H
5,606,406

Exercisable at

the end of the year —

FRATHE
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8 J N T

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BZ2_BENFT_A=1—HIFE
40.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

0.UKEBRZRRES @

Equity-settled share option schemes (Continued) DESEHEBRESS (8)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial

model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Market price ™8
Exercise price 1I(EE
Expected volatility HEaH K IR

Contractual life S A EH
Risk-free rate 2 [ B M) R

Expected dividend yield TEHR B s &

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the stock return of certain comparable listed

companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$278,000 (2008: Nil)
for the year in relation to share options granted by the

Company under the Scheme.

(b) FERxHER &l ()

WIRER K ERA S EA MR
¥ EHAFEAMENT

HK$8.7478 7T
HK$8.747% 7T
4831%

8 yearstF
2431%

NIl £

BEtRBRETHELR EMA A
HENERBEREETE -

HEBBREARETAEERER
REENREGEHTE - BREE
ERETEBRANTAEKMAAE
B R -

AEERFARBERRRARIEZ
AT 8RB AR RE B 5 52 278,000/
T(ZETNF &) -
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e

4] .RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make

the required contributions under the scheme.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required

contributions under the schemes.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years.

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

41.38 tR 18 7T 2

AEERBRHN DTS EGORH
FRERBEBEERIBHELES
8 ([mEestEl)  RESHEANEE
FHRABYSREAZGOES - B
SENBEESRFKE - REBREEAE
MRA BEREBREDHAZRAEE
MR ZEHRT - AEEHRES
Bl -EEARAEELREN

$HaR

AEERTHERNEES i ERA
EENMBEREERAREMNTENKE °
FEMEBLARARZEREEEARTIEN
AT RBLERKEF SR K
RUBNEHES - AEERZEKE
MEtBlwm—EERRAEELRE
HOEE R o

R IR S B B 4 R 0 R DR e KR it
K o

Eiﬁl Annual Report 2009 @



"

e

42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had transactions with related parties,
some of which are deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the
Listing Rules upon Listing. The transactions with these parties during
the year, and balances with them at the end of the reporting period,

are as follows:

(1) RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

R2FHERBEENTHE

FAAREEEEATETRS  HE
RENZEALTRARA LWEARE L
MRABSBEAL - BEZFALRF
NETHRIRBERRERENER
me

Name of counterparty

REHTER

Guangzhou Zhujiang Steel Port Co,
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Zhujiang"),
an associate of the Group
BMNIKMERBRA A
(TEMKIMIBR]) -
REE R ERF

Guangzhou Asia Steel Property Co,,
Ltd. (“GAS Property”), a company
indirectly owned by Mr. Chun

BMNGHEXERDA
(TRMNGWER]) -
REEHMEAENAA

Asia Wing Tat Recycling Limited
("Asia Wing Tat"), a company
indirectly owned by Mr. Chun

DMNEERREBRDA
(TaiMeRE]) -
RAEEREBEENAR

Wellrun Limited
HEAR DA

Mr. Chun
RuHE

() FEREEAL

Nature of 2009 2008
transactions/balances —BEAF —EENF
X5/ @EHHE HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TE T
Port loading charges paid 1,541 32
(notes a and f)
ENEOKRHER (K iEakf) — 54
Non-trade receivable
FEWIEE 5 5R
Rental expenses paid 696 283
(notes b and f)
ENEEMAX (bR 115 15
Deposit paid (note 23)
B RE (H3E23)
Cargo handling service fee paid 3,456 4,800
(notes c and @)
ENEMEEREE
(5t ckg)
Non-trade receivable — 771
U IFE 5 50R
Non-trade payable — (2,219)

N IFE % 50R
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42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2FFARFENLHE

() RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES (Continued) () EERBEEAL (&)

ARAEERRAER-_FENFT
“R=t-HRFTREERBEA
ERREBRITER - WEREAE
EERN-—RRITBE - BRER
FPEBBTHERENANFE AR

Mr. Chun, a director of the Company, had given unlimited
personal guarantees and pledged a bank deposit to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as at 3|
December 2008. The guarantees and pledged bank deposit were

released during the current year.

Inc. (“Lane Tone")

(notes e and h)

REERTB (FiEefh)

E/% o
(1) CONNECTED PARTIES (I BEAL
Nature of 2009 2008
Name of counterparty transactions/balances —EENE —ZEENF
XEHTER X5/ HHtE HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Certain subsidiaries of Guangzhou Sale of recycled metals 2,253,621 1,981,440
Iron & Steel Enterprises (notes d and h)
HELER B (Madkh)
Holdings Limited (“GSEG") Trade receivable 802,102 300,215
BMMECXEEERAT eI E 5508
(TEHC¥EBANF]) Bills receivable 192,714 83,680
HETH B AR FBUERE
Lane Tone International Material Purchase of scrap metals 1,073,615 1,012,888
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42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

() COMPENSATION OF

KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emolument of directors who are also identified as members

of key management of the Group is set out in note |2.

Notes:

(@)

On 22 May 2009, Guangzhou Asia Steel, a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Guangzhou Zhujiang, of which a substantial
shareholder is an associate of a substantial shareholder of Guangzhou
Asia Steel, entered into a service agreement (the “Port Loading Service
Agreement”) under which Guangzhou Zhujiang agreed to provide port
loading services to Guangzhou Asia Steel commencing from the date of
Listing (i.e. 22 June 2009) and ending on 31 December 201 1. By
entering into the above connected transactions, Guangzhou Asia Steel
would receive port loading services from Guangzhou Zhujiang in a

timely and efficient manner.

The service fee payable by Guangzhou Asia Steel in relation to the
provision of port loading services by Guangzhou Zhujiang is
determined on the basis of prevailing market price and on normal
commercial terms. The Port Loading Service Agreement was negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group and the terms of which represent normal

commercial terms.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the limit as

set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 10 June 2009.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

R.BFEARFAENTHSE »)

() TEEE A S H M

EXE(MAAKENTIZEERAR)
MR M BT R 12 o

RZZEEAFERA-FT-B  ARFH
2 E B A7) B M 25 80 B O 2R 5 7
HAE-—ZFERFRAEMNEH—EEE
RREBEEA) 5T — B RS B ([E A
RERBHE]) - Bt BMKMIFER
AEaLtTREHE-_TTAFARA =T
—H)REZE——FT+ZRA=1+—HlLt
MEME SR E A D RE RS - BBET
VERAERS  BMEHEREAX
Hh 7 B M Bk E S SEFT AR (X A9 B O ]
MR -

FEM 35 s st M TR SRS SEFRIR 0B
KEOREMENORBEDRATHE
B—REEGREE - A KHRE 5B
FINAKEEERBBEFERFHE
BRI - H RSB —REEGRK -

anr
Xt

EHERSHETERBAAR T
ZAFANATHNENRRERMER

o

A

b
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42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 23 May 2008, Guangzhou Asia Steel entered into an office lease as

tenant with GAS property as landlord, pursuant to which GAS
Property agreed to lease to Guangzhou Asia Steel certain office
premises in Guangzhou, the PRC at a monthly rental of RMB36,029 for
a term commencing from | June 2008 and ending on 3| May 2010.The
office premises were leased due to the expansion of the Group’s
business in Guangzhou and the close proximity of the office premises

with the Guangzhou Asia Steel's facility.

The rental rate is determined on the basis of prevailing market rates

and on normal commercial terms.

On 23 February 2009, Huan Bao Steel Limited (“Huan Bao"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a service agreement
with Asia Wing Tat whereby Huan Bao has engaged Asia Wing Tat to
provide cargo handling services at a monthly service fee of
HK$288,000 for a term commencing from | January 2009 to 30 June
2009. The service agreement was subsequently extended for a period
of six months. The agreement was entered into for the purpose of
giving convenience to certain scrap suppliers of the Group who are
accustomed to Huan Bao's scrap collection site, which is located at Yau

Tong, Hong Kong.

The service fee payable by Huan Bao in relation to the provision of
cargo handling services by Asia Wing Tat is determined on the basis of
prevailing market price, was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and
entered into in the ordinary course of business of the Group and on

normal commercial terms.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the limit as

set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 10 June 2009.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

2FFARFENLHE

BT -

(b)

(%)

RZZBZENFHEA-+=0 BME#
(ERABAN) BEMTMER ERE

DAL -BRIERL - H o EMDE
90 E 2 R B A AL R BB M A A T
AREMEETEMDH - ABRAARK

36,0297 - MHIE-TTNFERA—H
BE-Z-—ZFRA=1+—ALt - BHR

AEEBEEMNBREY BERBA=E
WEBEEMNGHZNE  WARRER
AEME

LB EXDEATHHEHEER K
BERIEE -

RZZBZENF-A=+=8" 42
EMBARRRMBEAER DA (RRH
B BT MEETL—BRE R - &
b RRMEZETNEERBEEYE
BR% B-TTNF-—A—HEEZ
TTAERNA=1AL BAREES
288,000/ 7T © Z RIS i BE 4 B B /<
Ao ZMERDARAETRRMECNE
BHBENENERENAEEE TER
HRE R R E R T

EI VAL

RRIBERIMNRERENEYRER
BELNHREE KR TFEEERT
MEBE  ERASERAEERBESR
BR—MREERRETL -

REBEXZBELERBAR
TRAFERATETENBRERZAHR
B e
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42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@

GSEG is an associate of a substantial shareholder of Guangzhou Asia
Steel, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and thus, a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules upon Listing.
The Group entered into separate sales agreements (the “Sales
Agreements”) with certain subsidiaries of GSEG to supply them with

recycled scrap metals.

The transaction price in relation to the supply of recycled scrap
metals is determined with reference to the prevailing market
price of the recycled scrap metals. The Sale Agreements were
negotiated on an arm’s length basis and entered into in the
ordinary course of business of our Company and their terms

represent normal commercial terms.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the limit as

set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 10 June 2009.

Lane Tone is an associate of a director of Tianjin Yatong Steel Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Yatong”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules upon Listing. On | June 2009, the Group and Lane Tone entered
into a framework purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to purchase scrap metals from
Lane Tone commencing from the date of Listing (i.e. 22 June 2009) and
ending on 31 December 201 I.

The purchase price payable by the Group in relation to the purchase of
the scrap metals from Lane Tone is determined with reference to the
prevailing market price of the scrap metal. The Purchase Agreement
was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and was entered into in the
ordinary course of business of the Group and on normal commercial

terms.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the limit as

set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 10 June 2009.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

R.BFEARFAENTHSE »)

BT

(d)

(e)

(%)

MEXEERRIREARELENE
AEMEH -2 BB EA
FURAREEWRRE ETHAR
RANEEAL - AKECEEHLE
SEARMETHERRZBILAH
#([HEHH])  ARSHELD
WESE -

FRAREEOUESBNRSEBNH2E
ROWEEBORTHEEE - HEH
BEORARABRERBREPELLE
BT  HRE — R REN -

ZERERGRE N EBRAAF _FF
NERATRTENBREZAEAMBE -

Lane Tone AR AR EMBRAIKRZE
SMEEERAR ([REEH]) —BE
EHNBEA BEURAQAE EWERE
FTRAABEARNEEALT - RZF
ZNFSNA—RB - KEEHLane Toner]
V-BEERREGE ((RERE]) &
- AEEREE LMAHEIZSTN
FRAAZTZR)REZZE——F+=A
=+ —H It #E M Lane TonefR i E &
B -

A& E R Lane Tone ki & B M ETHY
REER2ZESBNATMEETE -
REMEDRAEEAREBBRAL

APRERR—REEARITL -

anr
N

FHERSHEETERRBAAR -
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42.RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

These connected transactions are defined as “continuing connected
transactions” in the Listing Rules and are exempt from the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirement

under Rules [4A.33 of the Listing Rules.

These connected transactions are defined as “continuing connected
transactions” in the Listing Rules and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but subject to the reporting and
announcement requirement under Rules [4A.45 to [4A.47 of the

Listing Rules.

These connect transactions are defined as non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in the Listing Rules and are subject to reporting
and announcement requirements under Rules 14A.45 to [4A.47 of the
Listing Rules and waivers from strict compliance with the
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirement on

these transactions have been sought from the Stock Exchange.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

NREFFEARBAEALTHE

BT -

(9)

(&)

%Z%Bﬁ‘ﬁi%*&ﬁftﬁfﬁﬁlﬁiﬁ [5&
CEHEETLEMRAE

14A.33{\7RE’\]5'E$E SN VA& Ei

ZERERIBEETRAEEAFE
51 BEHRETERERAER

E o BEEES EWARAE 14A45F

14AATIRR 2B R AHIE °

ZEMERIBELTRANER AR
SREBERS  BETETHIE
14AA5Z VAAATIRR 2 MR D RE -
WEBKE R ERPZER B ERIE
B AMRBY BB ERTE
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&, d GAMERRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009

HBE—_EENFL-A=1+—HIEE

43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 43.MBATIREZ AT

ASSOCIATE -

(I) SUBSIDIARIES W) KEAS
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 ARAMBRRANR-ZEZNF+Z
and 31 December 2008 are as follows: A=+—-BRZZZENE+R=

T—BHEENT :

Issued and  Proportion of nominal
fully paid value of issued

sharelquota  share/quota capital/

Place capitall  registered capital
and date of Form of  registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation/ business BRAR KRR
MEARER establishment structure BERE/ BERARE/ Principal
ERAIL/ RBRB REEE/ REELR /M activities
RutER A 28 HUE - EXEENHLA TEXEK
Directly Indirect
E#E ] &
% %
Asia Steel (Holdings) British Virgin Islands (note a) Limited liability US$200 100 — Investment holding
Limited 20 July 1999 company RERR
s (1) AERLEE (Wda) ARRA
ARAH —“AANELRZTH
Asia Steel (HK) Hong Kong (note a) Limited liability ~ HK$78,100,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited 6 December 2000 company REAER
SlE (%) &8 (M) ARRA
AR “ERTETANA
Asia Steel (Investments) ~ Hong Kong (note a) Limited liability HK$100,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited [ August 1999 company RERK
slsE (RE) &% (fitita) ARRE
ARRA] “AANENAT-H
Asia Steel (Development)  Hong Kong (note a) Limited liability HK$100,000 — 100 Investment holding
SHEE (%R 4 June 1999 ARAR RERR
BRAR &8 (M)
“AAAERARA
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

43 .1t B 2 B R Bt & 2 S|B9 5

(I) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) () MEBAR (&)

Issued and  Proportion of nominal

fully paid value of issued
share/lquota  share/quota capital/
Place capitall  registered capital
and date of Form of  registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation/ business BEAR RAAFE
MEARER establishment structure BERE/ BREIRE/ Principal
ERAIL/ EBRRB REEE/ REELR /MR activities
RGBS 28 U EXEENLP IR
Directly Indirect
E& &
% %
Huan Bao Hong Kong (note b) Limited liability HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
RERMEBRAF 7 August 1998 company BT and collection,
&t (it akb) BERAF processing and sale
—“ANANENRLR of recycled scrap
metal
RALRRE -
MIREE
mhEEE
Central Steel Macau (note b) Limited liability MOP100,000 - 100 Metal trading
SMEE (RFER 21 March 2005 company RAT vBES
BERK)BERAR RS (WD) ARRA]
b = ik
=A=t-H
China Metal Recycling Hong Kong (note a) Limited liability HK$10,000 = 100 Inactive
(Investments) Limited 8 October 2009 company BT ARAEER
THEBBLER FAGET) ARRE
(RE)BRRA* “EEAFTANR
China Metal Recycling Hong Kong (note a) Limited liability HK$10,000 — 100 Inactive
(Development) Limited 8 October 2009 company ARAEE
THEELER &8 (Mita) BRAF
(BR)BRAF*  ZZTAETANAR
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN

ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(1) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEATEH

BrEHEBARAH
(Yangzhong Yagang
Metal Co, Ltd.)

RETRAAERAA
(Tianjin Yatong)

BNEHEBERAA
(Guangzhou Yatong)
Metal Co, Ltd.)

Place

and date of
incorporation/
establishment
EMRL/
RutER A

The PRC (note b)
|5 December 2006
el (Fib)
ZTERF

+-At+EHA

The PRC (note b)

16 August 2006

& (HiiEb)

= £ IIVETA:

The PRC (note b)

25 May 2007

i (A3tb)
“ZZ+FRACTRA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEaMBHRRME

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

(h KEQR (&)

Issued and  Proportion of nominal

fully paid
share/quota
capitall
Form of  registered capital
business BRAR
structure BrRx/
EHRR REEX/
28 HUE -
Wholly-foreign  U5$20,000,000
owned enterprise E
HNEBERR
Wholly-foreign ~ US$13,000,000
owned enterprise e
NEBERR
Wholly-foreign ~ US$3,500,000
owned enterprise E

NEBELE

value of issued
share/quota capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARAfRE
BRTKRA/
REEL /M
EXEENHLA
Directly Indirect
E& A%
% %

= 90.385

43.0 B A B REE A F R
8 @)

Principal
activities

TEEH

Investment holding
and collection,
processing and sale
of recycled scrap
metal
RAARREDY -
NIRHEE
mkELE

Collection,
processing

and sale of recycled
scrap metal

ek MR
HEOWETE

Collection,
processing

and sale of recycled
scrap metal

e mIR
HEDWELDE
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009

ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(1) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEATEHR

BMCRABRRAR)
(Guangzhou Asia Steel)

RREANBLER
ARAT
(Zhangjiagang Rongli)

11155 8 & B AT Y
ARR
(Zhongshan Yatong
Metal Materials Co,, Ltd.)

ERCHEBARDA
(Ningbo Yagang Metal
Co, Ltd)

Place

and date of
incorporation/
establishment
EMERL/
RGBS

The PRC (note b)

5 May 2001
GENGIED)
“ZZ-FRATAHA

The PRC (note b)

| December 2006

i (Ft )
ZETRETZA-H

The PRC (note b)

3 September 2008
i (H3Eb)
“Z2E\FNA=H

The PRC (note a)

4 September 2008

T E (Hiita)
“2E\FAAMA

Issued and
fully paid
share/quota
capitall
Form of  registered capital
business BEAR
structure BERE/
EBRRB REEE/
28 U
Sino-foreign US$4,500,000
owned enterprise e
PARELR
Limited liability ~ RMBI6,667,000
company AEB
ARRA
Wholly-foreign ~ US$10,000,000
owned enterprise e
HEEELR
Wholly-foreign - RMB20,000,000
owned enterprise AR

NEBELE

BE-_ZTTAF+=

(42)
(%)

(h KWEQR (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued
share/quota capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARAf#
BRATRE/
REELR /MR
EXEENLP
Directly Indirect
E& &

% %

— 75

100

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 @
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43.MBABT REEABNHT

Principal
activities

TEEH

Collection,
processing
and sale of recycled
scrap metal

Ak MIR

HEOWEDE

Collection,
processing

and sale of recycled
scrap metal

B4 IR
HEOWESE

Collection,
processing

and sale of recycled
scrap metal
@i MT R
HEDWEDR

Inactive

ARANEE



= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&, d GAMERRME
For the year ended 3! December 2009
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 43.MBATIREZ AT
ASSOCIATE (Continued) 15 &)

(I) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) () HEBAR (&)

Issued and  Proportion of nominal
fully paid value of issued
share/lquota  share/quota capital/

Place capitall  registered capital
and date of Form of  registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation/ business BRAR KRR
MEARER establishment structure BERE/ BERARE/ Principal
ERAIL/ XBRRB REEE/ REER/EH activities
RutER A 28 HUE - EXEENHLA TEXEK
Directly Indirect
E& A%
% %

RATHEBABARF  The PRC (note a) Sino-foreign ~ US$12,000,000 — 70 Inactive
(Wuhan Yagang Metal 10 November 2008 owned enterprise (note ¢) AEAEE
Co, Ltd) ("Wuhan i (Mfita) mAHEERE e
Yagang") “ZZ\F+-A+AH (M3Ec)

SREE (R The PRC (note a) Wholly-foreign ~ US$5,000,000 = 100 Inactive
BRATF I3 March 2009 owned enterprise (note c) ARAEE
(Yatong Metal (Shenzhen) B (i ta) NABELE e
Co, Ltd) (*Yatong “ZTNF=AT=H (Mitc)

Shenzhen)*

THTeBEER The PRC (note b) Wholly-foreign ~ U5$29,980,000 — 100 Investment holding
BRARF 28 August 2009 owned enterprise and collection,
(jiangsu CMR Resources)* # B (fi{zEb) NEBELE processing and sale

“ETNFENRZTNA of recycled scrap
metal
RAAREDY
MIRHE
mBESE
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 43 BATIREIZATHIE
ASSOCIATE (Continued) (&)

(I) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) () MEBAR (&)

Issued and  Proportion of nominal
fully paid value of issued

share/lquota  share/quota capital/

Place capitall  registered capital
and date of Form of  registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation/ business BEAR RAAFE
MEARER establishment structure BERE/ BREIRE/ Principal
EMERL/ EHRR REEX/ REEXR /T activities
RGBS 28 U EXEENLP IR
Directly Indirect
E¥ GF:
% %
IHTEBLEAR The PRC (note b) Limited liability ~ RMB30,000,000 — 70 Collection,
MARRAR 10 November 2009 company ARE processing
(Jiangsu CMR el (A Eb) ERDA and sale of recycled
Materials)* “EENFT-ATH scrap metal
B4 IR
HEOWEDE
Notes: B =
(@)  These entities are either investment holding or provision of (a ZEERABRAREERIFBLE
financial services companies only or inactive and do not have any ZRARIHEARRALS W ELAE
operations. EER -
(b)  The operations of these entities are located at the place of b) ZEERREZMAI AL S
incorporation/establishment. & o
(c)  Capital injections to these entities are not completed at the end (c) RBEEHRIRTHEZEEENE
of the reporting period. The unpaid capital for Wuhan Yagang and B -RZZEENF+ZA=+—H "
Yatong Shenzhen as at 3| December 2009 amounted to REDHRDIHRINKRAERS
US$8,300,000 (2008: US$12,000,000) and US$3,500,000 £ 8300000t (ZZEZF N\ F
(2008:N/A), respectively. 12,000,000 7T) &3,500,000%71: (=
ZTNEFE I TER) °
2 Subsidiaries newly set up/established during the year ended 3 < REZE-_ZZNF+_A=+—HIt

December 2009. FEHFEMY/HIHHEA

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 @
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GaMBHRRM:

For the year ended 3! December 2009
BE-—FETNFE+-A=+—HIFE

43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AN 43.MBA S REIE AT HE

ASSOCIATE (Continued) 15 &)
(I1) AN ASSOCIATE () BEAR
Particulars of the Group's associate at 3| December 2008 and AEEBERRANR_ZEZN\F+Z

3| December 2009 are as follows:

Name of associate

BENTEW

BMKMIER B R E
(Guangzhou Zhujiang)

Place and
date of

establishment

R B

The PRC

28 February 2003
o3
—TET=F
“HAZ-tNH

A=+t—BE-ZEZENF+-A=
+T—HWFEBOT

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital

held indirectly

Form of by the Company

business VNI E:
structure BEAMER Principal activities
EBREABEX  HESOLH FEXRH
Sino-foreign 45% Construction of
owned terminals, loading and
enterprise unloading of cargoes,
HNE B and warehousing
RETE KHEY
KR &

44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF M.AASIMBRARE

THE COMPANY

2009 2008

=t L “BENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEx

TOTAL ASSETS HEE 2,086,778 1,058,592

TOTAL LIABILITIES meE (3,858) (697,613)

NET ASSETS EEFE 2,082,920 360,979
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E

Share capital R 7R 105 —

Reserves (note) feh & (PR &) 2,082,815 360,979

TOTAL EQUITY BRER 2,082,920 360,979
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FETNFE+-FA=+—HIFE

MARATRBRAR @

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B 5E
Share
Share Capital options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BHEE BAfE BRERE 2REE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET Tz FET
At | January 2008 RZZETNE
—A-H — 161,370 — (21,147) 140,223
Issue of share IR
(note 35(i)) (B £ 351ii) 234,000 - — 234,000
Loss for the year FEER — = = (13,244) (13,244)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENEF
+ZA=+—-H 234,000 161,370 — (34,391) 360979
Capitalisation issue BALES (70) — — — (70)
Issue of new shares BHR 1,787,065 — — 1,787,065
Cost of issue of BATRBRA A
new shares (102215) — — (102215)
Recogition of RUNERLEE
equity-settled AR % {5038
share-based payments — — 15,120 — 15,120
Profit for the year FEEEF — — — 21936 21936
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBENE
+ZA=1+-H 1,918,780 161,370 15,120 (12,455) 2,082,815

Eiﬁil Annual Report 2009 @



- FiveYears’ Financial Summary

., %R EEE

RESULTS -

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—TERFE Z—TEREF —TE+F —TENFE ZEBhE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET FET
(note 1) (note 2) (note 2) (note 2)
(Ffat1) (ffzt2) (ffzt2) (Kfzt2)
Revenue Wz 803,125 1,090,338 1,942,400 6526594 9,063,175
Profit before taxation Bx 2% B & A 41,063 100,235 187,069 330,920 503,635
Income tax expense FrEBRAx (821) (4,855) (8,342) (23,007) (24,950)
Profit for the year F B A 40,242 95,380 178,727 307913 478,685
Attributable to: FE1h
Owners of AN/
the Company A A 35,298 46,626 137,691 294,431 478,422
Minority interests DB
fE 4,944 48,754 41,036 13,482 263
40,242 95,380 178,727 307,913 478,685
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—EERF ZTTREFE TELF ZTITN\FE ZZEEhEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET FET
(note ) (note 2) (note 2) (note 2)
(Ffat1) (ffit2) (ffat2) (Kfit2)
Total assets BmEE 408,686 583,274 1,585,317 2,102,263 4,750,667
Total liabilities BmeE (334,839) (373,768)  (1,272,031)  (1,205911) (1,660,852)
73,847 209,506 313,286 896,352 3,089,815
Equity attributable to ARBIERA
owners of the Company JE1E#E = 59,481 100,224 278,527 831,554 3,009,981
Minority interests DERRER 14,366 109,282 34,759 64,798 79,834
73,847 209,506 313,286 896,352 3,089,815
Notes: B et
I, The figures for year ended 31 December 2005 have been extracted from 1. BE_ZRRFT-_A=+—HIFENEE
audited consolidated financial statement of Asia Steel (H.K)) Limited, the ke DNEE (BB) ERADNEERES
holding company which had produced comparable financial statements for BHHRE  ZRARERRR  BERAKEE
that year before the reorganisation of the Group. HARHZFNAIL R BRE -
2. The figures for three years ended 31 December 2008 have been extracted 2. BEEZNET-_A=+—HLE=AFEHN
from the prospectus of the Company dated 10 June 2009. YEBBEAARFT ZEEAEAA+HFIEL
BiRERE
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